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The Directors of Agritech Limited, henceforth called the Company, along with the management team are pleased to present 
the Company's Interim Report accompanied by the Reviewed Financial Statements for the Six months ended June 30, 2021.

These interim financial statements have been endorsed by the Chief Execu�ve Officer, Chief Financial Officer and one of the 
Directors in accordance with the Code of Corporate Governance, having been recommended for approval by the Audit 
Commi�ee of the Board and approved by the Board of Directors for presenta�on.

Business Review

Principal Ac�vi�es

The main business of the Company is the manufacturing and marke�ng of fer�lizers. The Company owns and operates the 
country's one of the newest and most efficient urea manufacturing plant at Mianwali, Punjab Province. The Company also 
operates the manufacturing facility of GSSP (Granular Single Super Phosphate) at Haripur Hazara, Khyber Pakhtunkhwa 
(KPK) Province. The Company markets its fer�lizers from these plants under one of the most trusted brand name “TARA” in 
the fer�lizer industry.

First Half in Review

Financial Results of Agritech Limited

Directors' Review

Overview of Fer�lizer Industry:

During the 1st half of 2021 the Produc�on of Urea increased by 5% to 3,068K tonne vs 2,910K tonne in 2020 due to improved 
gas/RLNG supplies to the fer�lizer sector par�cularly the plants on SNGPL Network. Gas supply to the fer�lizer plants on 
SNGPL network was restored in march 2021. Urea o�akes for the period under review were recorded at 2,899K tonne 
increasing by 9% vs 2,672K tonne in same period last year. Significant increase in Urea O�akes is a�ributed to the improved 
farms economics par�cularly higher wheat produc�on and increase in wheat support price by GOP.

The Company faced improved supplies of gas/RLNG during the first half of year 2021 as plant started in March 2021 a�er the 
winter load management. The Company managed to produce 114 K Tonne of Urea (Nil K tonne: 2020) against installed 
capacity of 215K tonne for the period.  The Company sold 59 K tonne Urea (16 K tonne: 2020) of the previous year stock.

Consump�on of Phosphates, during the 1st half of 2020, saw an increase of 6% to 363K tonne of P2O5 Nutrients vs 342K 
tonne last year. Produc�on of Phosphates products also registered a healthy increase of 14% (265K tonne Nutrients in 2021 
vs 233K tonne Nutrients in 2020) due to improved farms economics in the country. Phosphates price lead by DAP in the 
interna�onal market saw sharp and constant increases whereby DAP price at the start of the year at around US$400 per 
tonne CFR KHI increased to US$600 per tonne CFR KHI during the period under review. The increase in DAP price is reflected 
in the prices of all the phospah�c fer�lizers in the country. The Company, being a major SSP player, produced 36K tonne SSP 
in 1H 2021(29 K tonne: 2020) and sold 24 K tonne during the period (24 K tonne: 2019). 

Modifica�on in the Auditors report

Qualifica�on

In auditor's report for the period, auditors raised following concern which states as " The management has assessed the 
recoverability of deferred tax asset on tax losses and tested the impairment of goodwill based on five years business plan

Company Information
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            2,510,069,600

             (540,833,407)

          (1,349,310,838)

          (1,890,144,245)

          (1,700,003,127)

(4.33)
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approved by the Board of Directors and asserts that no impairment is required in this financial informa�on. However, we are 
unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence with respect to key assump�on used in the business plan i.e. 
opera�onal days based on the availability of natural gas and cost of raw material based on gas rates since approval from 
Government of Pakistan for supply of gas to the Company at subsidized rates as well as its supply is not certain. Management 
is, however, confident that supply of gas will be available on long term basis. Consequently, we were unable to determine 
whether any adjustment in respect of impairment was necessary for goodwill amoun�ng to Rs. 2,567 million and deferred 
tax asset amoun�ng to Rs. 6,371 million recognized on tax losses of Rs. 21,968 million in this financial informa�on.”

Material Uncertainty rela�ng to Going Concern

Auditors also raised concern about the Company’s ability to operate as going concern which states as “Notwithstanding the 
ma�er discussed in Basis for the Qualified Conclusion sec�on, the Company during the half year ended 30 June 2021 has 
incurred loss before tax amoun�ng to Rs.1,890 million and, as of that date, its current liabili�es exceeded its current assets 
by Rs. 43,942 million, and its accumulated losses stood at Rs. 22,979 million. These condi�ons, along with other ma�ers as 
set forth in note 2.4 to the financial statements, indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may castsignificant 
doubt about the Company’s ability to con�nue as a going concern. Our conclusion is notqualified in respect of this ma�er.”

Emphasis of Ma�er

Auditors has also  given Emphasis of ma�er which states as “We draw a�en�on to notes 11 & 21 to the accompanying 
condensed interim financial informa�on, wherein it is stated that the Company is defending legal suits filed by some 
financial ins�tu�ons for recovery of their dues as it could not pay its liabili�es on due dates. Our conclusion is not qualified in 
this respect.”

Explana�on of Modifica�ons of Auditor's Report;

The gas curtailment coupled with gas pricing issue to the Company’s urea plant has been the most crucial factor for the past 
few years’ opera�onal and liquidity issues of the Company. The Company, along with other plant on SNGPL Network, faced 
unprecedented gas curtailment during the past few years. The Company has been financing its assets and opera�ons 
through high level of borrowings. Due to overall gas shortage in the system, Government of Pakistan (“GOP”) diverted gas 
from fer�lizer sector on SNGPL Network to other sectors par�cularly power sector during summer and domes�c sector 
during winter. This gas curtailment caused low urea produc�on versus available capacity resul�ng in con�nuous opera�onal 
and liquidity issues which further resulted in overdue borrowings and related mark-up as referred to in Note 21 to the 
condensed interim financial informa�on.

During past couple of years, gas supply to the Company has witnessed improvements with regular imports of Liquefied 
Natural Gas (“LNG”) by the Government of Pakistan (“GOP”). Consistent LNG imports improved RLNG flow to Sui Northern 
Gas Pipelines Limited ("SNGPL") benefi�ng consumers including fer�lizer sector. Gas supply to the Company's urea plant 
was restored in the September 2018 on a blend of natural gas and RLNG. Subsequently in 2019 RLNG supplies at subsidized 
rate were provided to the company and plant was running on regular basis. In 2020 similar policy by GOP con�nued, 
however, with lower gas supplies than in 2019. For the current year 2021, GOP at the start of the year has approved RLNG 
supply from March to November 2021 to meet the growing Urea demand in the country. However, the company faced gas 
curtailment at the peak of summer again whereby GOP diverted gas/RLNG to the Power sector which is likely to restored 
back from SeptemberThe expecta�on of con�nuous availability of gas is based on the fact that the GOP is opera�ng both 
LNG terminals in the country with having a combined capacity of 1200 mmscfd.  Supply of RLNG is contracted for one 
terminal though a 15 year long term agreement with Government of Qatar, to import nearly 3.75 million tons of LNG per 
year. The long term LNG supply is further augmented through another contract with Qatar. Addi�onally the procurement of  
spot cargoes is also con�nued by GOP. SNGPL is receiving major flow of LNG imports under swap arrangement from both 
terminals. This has improved the flow of gas into SNGPL system and making available required gas volumes for the fer�lizer 
plants on SNGPL network.

GOP's renewed focus on the Food Security is the most cri�cal aspect of feeding the popula�on of more than 210 million and 
fer�lizer, especially Urea plays a cri�cal role in enhancing the produc�on and yield of the crops. Urea demand in recent past 
has increased form an average 5.8 million tons to 6-6.2 million tons during last two years. Growing urea demand can only be 
met if all the plants in the country are operated on regular basis. Local produc�on ensures GOP with significant savings on 
precious Foreign Exchange as well as lower subsidy than on expensive urea imports. The company is confident that on these 
basis, con�nuous gas supply solu�on likely to be worked out with GOP.

Li�ga�ons with Banks

The Company due to the con�nued gas curtailment in the past many years could not meet the terms of most of the loan 
agreements executed with different financial ins�tu�ons. Allied Bank Limited (ABL), Pak Libya Holding Company (Pvt.)
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Limited , Meezan Bank Limited, Bank Alfalah Limited, Soneri Bank Limited and Na�onal Bank of Pakistan have filed cases for 
recovery of their respec�ve loans along with accrued mark-up and other related charges against the Company. All these 
banks had already given NOC for the restructuring scheme proposed in 2016 which is pending for the approval of the 
Honorable Lahore High Court. Based on legal opinions, the Board is fully confident that the likelihood of any liability is 
remote. The markup of these banks has already been recognized in these financial statements in accordance with terms of 
loan agreements and as referred in Note 2.4 to the financial statements. The company has filed the restructuring scheme 
with the Honorable Lahore High Court a�er obtaining NOCs from all these banks. 

Capital Restructuring

Gas curtailment and gas/RLNG price to the Company's Urea plant during the past few years was the major cause of non-
servicing of the debt of the Company and the accumula�on of mark-ups further increased its debt burden. In addi�on to 
this, few banks and financial ins�tu�ons have filed cases for recovery of loans extended by them along with accrued markup 
and other related charges against the Company. In order to streamline this debt burden, a Capital Restructuring Plan was 
envisaged with the coopera�on of lenders to devise a sustainable capital structure, which included the conversion of its 
exis�ng long term debt including mark-ups into Preference Shares. The plan also includes sale of excess land to payoff long 
term lenders a�er seeking the necessary approvals. The infrastructure developments plans of GOP around the Company's 
both plants will likely to increase the value of its land. Par�cularly, the par�cipa�on of the Company in CPEC project's sec�on 
Hakla-Daudkhel-DI Khan through provision of land for the said project looks very exci�ng and with the comple�on of CPEC, 
the surplus land of the Company has poten�al for commercial and industrial ac�vi�es for CPEC related trades in the future. 
Based on legal opinions, the Company is confident that likelihood of any addi�onal liability is remote as markup has already 
been recognized in these financial statements in accordance with terms of loan agreements.

This Capital Rehabilita�on Plan was filed through a pe��on in Lahore High Court in June 2016 for the enforceability of the 
scheme under sec�on 284-288 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984. The hearings at the LHC are con�nued and the Company 
is confident to obtain decision through the court for the Rehabilita�on Plan and commi�ed to implement the plan to 
improve the financial posi�on of the company.

Future Outlook;

The future prospect of Urea plant is relied on expecta�ons of con�nuous availability of gas and demand of urea in the 
country for the growth of the agriculture and assuring food security in the country. Pakistan is an Agrarian Economy that 
contributes 20% to the GDP, employs 42% of Labor Force and provides livelihood to the 66% of the popula�on of the country. 
Food Security is the most cri�cal aspect of feeding the popula�on of more than 210 million and the country is already forced 
to import wheat and sugar to meet the rising demand. A renewed focus of GOP will be required to increase the yields of the 
key staple crops for the long term food security of the country. Fer�lizer, especially Urea plays a cri�cal role in the produc�on 
and yield of the crops. Urea demand in the country since the last Fer�lizer Policy issued in 2001 is growing at CAGR of 2.5% 
and Produc�on has kept the pace of growth at CAGR of 2.2%. Installed Capacity of Urea in the country is of ~6.8 million tonne 
and produc�on of the available capacity of Agritech and other fer�lizer plant on SNGPL will be vital to meet the likely 
shortages, besides saving precious Foreign Exchange and subs�tu�ng vola�le urea imports.

The Company will con�nue to streamline other ini�a�ves like Scheme of Arrangement a�er the necessary court approvals 
and undertake necessary ac�ons for the long term development of the surplus land to generate addi�onal resources to 
address its financial obliga�ons. 
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the surplus land of the Company has poten�al for commercial and industrial ac�vi�es for CPEC related trades in the future. 
Based on legal opinions, the Company is confident that likelihood of any addi�onal liability is remote as markup has already 
been recognized in these financial statements in accordance with terms of loan agreements.

This Capital Rehabilita�on Plan was filed through a pe��on in Lahore High Court in June 2016 for the enforceability of the 
scheme under sec�on 284-288 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984. The hearings at the LHC are con�nued and the Company 
is confident to obtain decision through the court for the Rehabilita�on Plan and commi�ed to implement the plan to 
improve the financial posi�on of the company.

Future Outlook;

The future prospect of Urea plant is relied on expecta�ons of con�nuous availability of gas and demand of urea in the 
country for the growth of the agriculture and assuring food security in the country. Pakistan is an Agrarian Economy that 
contributes 20% to the GDP, employs 42% of Labor Force and provides livelihood to the 66% of the popula�on of the country. 
Food Security is the most cri�cal aspect of feeding the popula�on of more than 210 million and the country is already forced 
to import wheat and sugar to meet the rising demand. A renewed focus of GOP will be required to increase the yields of the 
key staple crops for the long term food security of the country. Fer�lizer, especially Urea plays a cri�cal role in the produc�on 
and yield of the crops. Urea demand in the country since the last Fer�lizer Policy issued in 2001 is growing at CAGR of 2.5% 
and Produc�on has kept the pace of growth at CAGR of 2.2%. Installed Capacity of Urea in the country is of ~6.8 million tonne 
and produc�on of the available capacity of Agritech and other fer�lizer plant on SNGPL will be vital to meet the likely 
shortages, besides saving precious Foreign Exchange and subs�tu�ng vola�le urea imports.

The Company will con�nue to streamline other ini�a�ves like Scheme of Arrangement a�er the necessary court approvals 
and undertake necessary ac�ons for the long term development of the surplus land to generate addi�onal resources to 
address its financial obliga�ons. 
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             (540,833,407)

          (1,349,310,838)

          (1,890,144,245)

          (1,700,003,127)
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thAs at 30  June 2021

Condensed Interim Statement of Financial Position

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Authorized share Capital

Share capital and reserves

Issued, subscribed and paid-up ordinary share capital

           

Reserves

                    

Accumulated Losses

      

Surplus on revalua�on of property, 

plant and equipment - net of tax

        

          

Non-current liabili�es

Redeemable capital - Secured

                                

Long term finances - Secured
                                

Conver�ble, redeemable preference shares           
Long term payables - Unsecured

          Deferred Liabili�es

          

        

Current liabili�es

Current maturity of long term liabili�es

        

Short term borrowings -secured

          

Trade and other payables

          

Interest/mark-up accrued on borrowings

        

Preference dividend payable

          

        

Total equity and liabili�es

        

Con�ngencies and commitments

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

                     

Intangible assets

Long term loans and advances - considered good

Long term deposits

Current assets

Stores, spares parts and loose tools

Stock-in-trade

Trade debts

Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables

Tax refunds due from Government - net

Cash and bank balances

Total assets

(Un-audited) (Audited)

30 June 31 December

Note 2021 2020

Rupees Rupees

15,000,000,000 15,000,000,000

4 3,924,300,000

               

3,924,300,000

9,000,000

                      

9,000,000

(22,979,530,537)

           

(21,630,116,483)

23,786,891,341

             

24,137,480,414

4,740,660,804

               

6,440,663,931

5 -

                                   
-

6 -
                                   

-

7 1,593,342,690                1,593,342,690

8 1,471,229,563

               
1,740,315,519

8,660,579,478

               

8,892,070,120

11,725,151,731

             

12,225,728,329

19,274,300,610

             

19,278,671,712

9 4,548,834,629

               

3,646,985,016

10 3,631,061,678

               

2,296,715,315

22,669,734,945

             

21,731,686,709

1,643,016,258

               

1,556,102,687

51,766,948,120

             

48,510,161,439

68,232,760,655

             

67,176,553,699

11

12 57,770,825,624 58,535,893,173

2,567,310,828 2,567,310,828

10,553,617 11,941,876

58,884,712 58,884,712

60,407,574,781 61,174,030,589

2,053,528,020 2,051,915,868

2,327,059,080 456,581,089

1,008 489,620

13 3,119,858,129 2,569,711,620

111,721,886 128,486,262

213,017,751 795,338,651

7,825,185,874 6,002,523,110

68,232,760,655 67,176,553,699

The annexed notes 1 to 26 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial informa�on.
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Independent Auditor's Review Report 

Introduc�on 

We have reviewed the accompanying condensed interim statement of financial posi�on of Agritech Limited as at June 30, 2021 and 
the related condensed interim statement of profit or loss, condensed interim statement of comprehensive income, condensed 
interim statement of changes in equity, and condensed interim statement of cash flows, and notes to the financial statements for the 
six-month period then ended (here-in-a�er referred to as the “interim financial statements”). Management is responsible for the 
prepara�on and presenta�on of this interim financial statements in accordance with accoun�ng and repor�ng standards as 
applicable in Pakistan for interim financial repor�ng. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on these financial statements based 
on our review.

Scope of Review 

We conducted our review in accordance with Interna�onal Standard on Review Engagements 2410, “Review of Interim Financial 
Informa�on Performed by the Independent Auditor of the En�ty”. A review of interim financial statements consists of making 
inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for financial and accoun�ng ma�ers, and applying analy�cal and other review procedures. 
A review is substan�ally less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with Interna�onal Standards on Audi�ng and 
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant ma�ers that might be iden�fied in 
an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Basis for Qualified Conclusion

The management has assessed the recoverability of deferred tax asset on tax losses and tested the impairment of goodwill based on 
five years business plan approved by the Board of Directors and asserts that no impairment is required in this financial informa�on. 
However, we are unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence with respect to key assump�on used in the business plan i.e. 
opera�onal days based on the availability of natural gas and cost of raw material based on gas rates since approval from Government 
of Pakistan for supply of gas to the Company at subsidized rates as well as its supply is not certain. Management is, however, confident 
that supply of gas will be available on long term basis. Consequently, we were unable to determine whether any adjustment in respect 
of impairment was necessary for goodwill amoun�ng to Rs. 2,567 million and deferred tax asset amoun�ng to Rs. 6,371 million 
recognized on tax losses of Rs. 21,968 million in this financial informa�on.

Qualified Conclusion

Based on our review, except for the possible effects of the ma�er described in the Basis for Qualified Conclusion paragraph, nothing 
has come to our a�en�on that causes us to believe that the accompanying condensed interim financial statements are not prepared, 
in all material respects, in accordance with accoun�ng and repor�ng standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial 
repor�ng.

Material Uncertainty Rela�ng to Going Concern

Notwithstanding the ma�er discussed in Basis for the Qualified Conclusion sec�on, the Company during the half year ended 30 June 
2021 has incurred loss before tax amoun�ng to Rs.1,890 million and, as of that date, its current liabili�es exceeded its current assets 
by Rs. 43,942 million, and its accumulated losses stood at Rs. 22,979 million. These condi�ons, along with other ma�ers as set forth in 
note 2.4 to the financial statements, indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the 
Company's ability to con�nue as a going concern. Our conclusion is not qualified in respect of this ma�er.

Emphasis of Ma�er

We draw a�en�on to notes 11 & 21 to the accompanying condensed interim financial informa�on, wherein it is stated that the 
Company is defending legal suits filed by some financial ins�tu�ons for recovery of their dues as it could not pay its liabili�es on due 
dates. Our conclusion is not qualified in this respect.

Other Ma�er 

We also draw a�en�on that the figures for quarter ended June 30, 2021 in the condensed financial statements of profit or loss have 
not been reviewed by us and we do not express a conclusion on them.

The engagement partner on the review resul�ng in this independent auditor's review report is Imran Afzal.

To the members of Agritech Limtied

Report on Review of Condensed Interim Financial Statements 

August 27, 2021

Lahore
Chief Execu�ve Chief Financial Officer

               

                     
Director

          

                

                

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman

Chartered Accountants
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Condensed Interim Statement of Financial Position

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Authorized share Capital

Share capital and reserves

Issued, subscribed and paid-up ordinary share capital

           

Reserves

                    

Accumulated Losses
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Long term deposits
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Rupees Rupees
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58,884,712 58,884,712
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68,232,760,655 67,176,553,699

The annexed notes 1 to 26 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial informa�on.
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Independent Auditor's Review Report 

Introduc�on 

We have reviewed the accompanying condensed interim statement of financial posi�on of Agritech Limited as at June 30, 2021 and 
the related condensed interim statement of profit or loss, condensed interim statement of comprehensive income, condensed 
interim statement of changes in equity, and condensed interim statement of cash flows, and notes to the financial statements for the 
six-month period then ended (here-in-a�er referred to as the “interim financial statements”). Management is responsible for the 
prepara�on and presenta�on of this interim financial statements in accordance with accoun�ng and repor�ng standards as 
applicable in Pakistan for interim financial repor�ng. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on these financial statements based 
on our review.

Scope of Review 

We conducted our review in accordance with Interna�onal Standard on Review Engagements 2410, “Review of Interim Financial 
Informa�on Performed by the Independent Auditor of the En�ty”. A review of interim financial statements consists of making 
inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for financial and accoun�ng ma�ers, and applying analy�cal and other review procedures. 
A review is substan�ally less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with Interna�onal Standards on Audi�ng and 
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant ma�ers that might be iden�fied in 
an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Basis for Qualified Conclusion

The management has assessed the recoverability of deferred tax asset on tax losses and tested the impairment of goodwill based on 
five years business plan approved by the Board of Directors and asserts that no impairment is required in this financial informa�on. 
However, we are unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence with respect to key assump�on used in the business plan i.e. 
opera�onal days based on the availability of natural gas and cost of raw material based on gas rates since approval from Government 
of Pakistan for supply of gas to the Company at subsidized rates as well as its supply is not certain. Management is, however, confident 
that supply of gas will be available on long term basis. Consequently, we were unable to determine whether any adjustment in respect 
of impairment was necessary for goodwill amoun�ng to Rs. 2,567 million and deferred tax asset amoun�ng to Rs. 6,371 million 
recognized on tax losses of Rs. 21,968 million in this financial informa�on.

Qualified Conclusion

Based on our review, except for the possible effects of the ma�er described in the Basis for Qualified Conclusion paragraph, nothing 
has come to our a�en�on that causes us to believe that the accompanying condensed interim financial statements are not prepared, 
in all material respects, in accordance with accoun�ng and repor�ng standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial 
repor�ng.

Material Uncertainty Rela�ng to Going Concern

Notwithstanding the ma�er discussed in Basis for the Qualified Conclusion sec�on, the Company during the half year ended 30 June 
2021 has incurred loss before tax amoun�ng to Rs.1,890 million and, as of that date, its current liabili�es exceeded its current assets 
by Rs. 43,942 million, and its accumulated losses stood at Rs. 22,979 million. These condi�ons, along with other ma�ers as set forth in 
note 2.4 to the financial statements, indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the 
Company's ability to con�nue as a going concern. Our conclusion is not qualified in respect of this ma�er.

Emphasis of Ma�er

We draw a�en�on to notes 11 & 21 to the accompanying condensed interim financial informa�on, wherein it is stated that the 
Company is defending legal suits filed by some financial ins�tu�ons for recovery of their dues as it could not pay its liabili�es on due 
dates. Our conclusion is not qualified in this respect.

Other Ma�er 

We also draw a�en�on that the figures for quarter ended June 30, 2021 in the condensed financial statements of profit or loss have 
not been reviewed by us and we do not express a conclusion on them.

The engagement partner on the review resul�ng in this independent auditor's review report is Imran Afzal.

To the members of Agritech Limtied

Report on Review of Condensed Interim Financial Statements 

August 27, 2021

Lahore
Chief Execu�ve Chief Financial Officer

               

                     
Director

          

                

                

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman

Chartered Accountants
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Condensed Interim Statement of Comprehensive Income (Un-audited)

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

For the half year ended 30 June 2021

30 June 30 June April to June April to June

2021 2020 2021 2020

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

(1,700,003,127) (2,699,673,605)

 
(686,336,346)

              
(1,378,286,061)

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 -

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

(1,700,003,127) (2,699,673,605)

 

(686,336,346)

              

(1,378,286,061)

 

For the six months ended For the quarter ended

Loss a�er taxa�on

Other comprehensive income:

Total comprehensive (loss) for the period

                   

Items that will not be reclassified to statement

of profit or loss

Items that will be reclassified to statement

of profit or loss 

The annexed notes 1 to 26 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial informa�on.
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Condensed Interim Statement of Profit or Loss (Un-audited)
For the half year ended 30 June 2021

30 June 30 June April to June April to June

Note 2021 2020 2021 2020

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

14 2,510,069,600

 

1,067,804,492

                     

2,058,680,494

 

466,229,796

15 (2,793,243,067)

 

(2,085,992,511)

                    

(1,925,066,136)

 

(1,112,275,450)

(283,173,467)

 

(1,018,188,019)

 

133,614,358

 

(646,045,654)

(114,141,889)

 

(37,914,966)

 

(93,000,787)

 

(14,737,865)

(156,245,457)
 

(145,802,703)
 

(81,283,637)
 

(76,361,517)

(270,387,346) (183,717,669) (174,284,424)  (91,099,382)

12,727,406

 
15,464,318

                           
(5,131,208)

 
3,247,496

(540,833,407)

 

(1,186,441,370)

                    

(45,801,274)

                          

(733,897,540)

(1,349,310,838)

 

(1,673,081,960)

                    

(719,997,888)

                       

(721,627,041)

(1,890,144,245)

 

(2,859,523,330)

                    

(765,799,162)

                       

(1,455,524,581)

16 190,141,118

 

159,849,725

                         

79,462,816

                           

77,238,520

(1,700,003,127)

 

(2,699,673,605)

                    

(686,336,346)

                       

(1,378,286,061)

(4.33)

 

(6.88)

                                       

(1.75)

                                       

(3.51)

Sales - net

Cost of sales

Gross (loss)/ profit 

Selling and distribu�on expenses

Administra�ve and general expenses

Other income

Opera�ng (loss)

Finance cost

Loss before taxa�on

Taxa�on for the period

Loss a�er taxa�on

Loss per share - basic and diluted 

The annexed notes 1 to 26 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial informa�on.

For the quarter endedFor the six months ended

Chief Execu�ve Chief Financial Officer

               

                     
Director

          

                

                
Chief Execu�ve Chief Financial Officer

               

                     
Director
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Condensed Interim Statement of Profit or Loss (Un-audited)
For the half year ended 30 June 2021

30 June 30 June April to June April to June
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The annexed notes 1 to 26 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial informa�on.

For the quarter endedFor the six months ended

Chief Execu�ve Chief Financial Officer

               

                     
Director

          

                

                
Chief Execu�ve Chief Financial Officer

               

                     
Director
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Condensed Interim Statement of Cash Flows (Un-audited)

14 | Agritech Limited 

For the half year ended 30 June 2021

Note

Cash flows from opera�ng ac�vi�es

Cash (used in)/ generated from opera�ons 18

           

Income tax paid

                 

Staff re�rement benefits paid

                    

Long term loans and advances - net

                     

Long term deposits - net

                                  

Net cash (used in)/ from opera�ng ac�vi�es

           

Cash flows from inves�ng ac�vi�es

Capital expenditure incurred

Interest income received

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

Net cash used in inves�ng ac�vi�es

Cash flows from financing ac�vi�es

(Decrease) in long term finances

Increase/(decrease) in short term borrowings - net

Finance cost paid

Net cash from/(used in) financing ac�vi�es

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of period 20

The annexed notes 1 to 26 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial informa�on.

30 June 30 June

2021 2020

Rupees Rupees

(1,280,167,578)

 

533,912,782

                

(20,886,666)

 

(53,248,182)

                 

(4,850,213)

 

(209,509)

                       

1,388,260

 

2,621,325

                     

-

 

(15,514,484)

                 

(1,304,516,197)

 

467,561,932

                

(37,281,164)
 

(33,359,088)

7,903,007  12,698,829

1,811,901
 

-

(27,566,256)

 
(20,660,259)

(4,371,102)

 

(24,200,934)

897,528,370

 

(14,524)

(147,716,959)

 

(2,095,267)

745,440,309

 

(26,310,725)

(586,642,144)

 

420,590,948

                

(1,922,669,425)

 

(2,134,556,293)

            

(2,509,311,569)

 

(1,713,965,345)

            

Chief Execu�ve Chief Financial Officer

               

                     
Director

          

                

                

D
ir

e
ct

o
r



Interim Financial Report | 15
C

o
n

d
e
n

se
d

 I
n

te
ri

m
 S

ta
te

m
e
n

t 
o

f 
C

h
a
n

g
e
s 

in
 E

q
u

it
y
 (

U
n

-a
u

d
it
e
d

)

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

            

C
h

ie
f 

Ex
e

cu
�

ve
C

h
ie

f 
Fi

n
an

ci
al

 O
ffi

ce
r

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

F
o

r 
th

e
 h

a
lf 

ye
a
r 

e
n

d
e

d
 3

0
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
2

1

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

A
s 

at
 0

1
 J

an
u

ar
y 

2
0

2
0

Lo
ss

 f
o

r 
th

e 
p

er
io

d
 e

n
d

ed
 J

u
n

e 
3

0
, 2

0
2

0

O
th

er
 c

o
m

p
re

h
en

si
ve

 in
co

m
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

:
R

e-
m

ea
su

re
m

en
t 

ga
in

 o
n

 e
m

p
lo

ye
e 

re
�

re
m

en
t 

b
en

efi
ts

R
el

at
ed

 d
ef

er
re

d
 t

ax
 li

ab
ili

ty
 o

n
 r

e-
m

ea
su

re
m

en
t 

ga
in

To
ta

l c
o

m
p

re
h

en
si

ve
 lo

ss
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
ed

 J
u

n
e 

3
0

, 2
0

2
0

Su
rp

lu
s 

tr
an

sf
e

rr
e

d
 t

o
 a

cc
u

m
u

la
te

d
 lo

ss
e

s 
o

n
 a

cc
o

u
n

t 
o

f:
- 

in
cr

em
en

ta
l d

ep
re

ci
a�

o
n

 o
n

 p
ro

p
er

ty
, p

la
n

t 
an

d
   

eq
u

ip
m

en
t 

- 
n

et
 o

f 
d

ef
er

re
d

 t
ax

A
s 

at
 J

u
n

e
 3

0
, 2

0
2

0

A
s 

at
 0

1
 J

an
u

ar
y 

2
0

2
1

Lo
ss

 f
o

r 
th

e 
p

er
io

d
 e

n
d

ed
 J

u
n

e 
3

0
, 2

0
2

1

O
th

er
 c

o
m

p
re

h
en

si
ve

 in
co

m
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

:

R
e-

m
ea

su
re

m
en

t 
ga

in
 o

n
 e

m
p

lo
ye

e 
re

�
re

m
en

t 
b

en
efi

ts

R
el

at
ed

 d
ef

er
re

d
 t

ax
 li

ab
ili

ty
 o

n
 r

e-
m

ea
su

re
m

en
t 

ga
in

To
ta

l c
o

m
p

re
h

en
si

ve
 lo

ss
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
ed

 J
u

n
e 

3
0

, 2
0

2
1

Su
rp

lu
s 

tr
an

sf
e

rr
e

d
 t

o
 a

cc
u

m
u

la
te

d
 lo

ss
e

s 
o

n
 a

cc
o

u
n

t 
o

f:

- 
in

cr
em

en
ta

l d
ep

re
ci

a�
o

n
 o

n
 p

ro
p

er
ty

, p
la

n
t 

an
d

   
eq

u
ip

m
en

t 
- 

n
et

 o
f 

d
ef

er
re

d
 t

ax

A
s 

at
 J

u
n

e
 3

0
, 2

0
2

1

Th
e 

an
n

ex
ed

 n
o

te
s 

1
 t

o
 2

6
 f

o
rm

 a
n

 in
te

gr
al

 p
ar

t 
o

f 
th

is
 c

o
n

d
en

se
d

 in
te

ri
m

 fi
n

an
ci

al
 in

fo
rm

a�
o

n
.

 

    
 

A
cc

u
m

u
la

te
d

 

lo
ss

C
ap

it
al

 R
e

se
rv

e

R
u

p
e

e
s

R
u

p
e

e
s

R
u

p
e

e
s

R
u

p
e

e
s

R
u

p
e

e
s

3
,9

2
4

,3
0

0
,0

0
0

 

2
4

,7
4

5
,8

4
1

,4
1

8
9

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

(1
7

,9
4

3
,0

4
9

,0
3

9
)

1
0

,7
3

6
,0

9
2

,3
7

9

-

 

-
-

(2
,6

9
9

,6
7

3
,6

0
5

)
(2

,6
9

9
,6

7
3

,6
0

5
)

-

 

-
-

-
-

-

 

-
-

-
-

-

 

-
-

(2
,6

9
9

,6
7

3
,6

0
5

)
(2

,6
9

9
,6

7
3

,6
0

5
)

-
(2

7
6

,5
3

7
,7

0
5

)
-

2
7

6
,5

3
7

,7
0

5
- -

3
,9

2
4

,3
0

0
,0

0
0

2
4

,4
6

9
,3

0
3

,7
1

3
9

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

(2
0

,3
6

6
,1

8
4

,9
3

9
)

8
,0

3
6

,4
1

8
,7

7
4

3
,9

2
4

,3
0

0
,0

0
0

2
4

,1
3

7
,4

8
0

,4
1

4
9

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

(2
1

,6
3

0
,1

1
6

,4
8

3
)

6
,4

4
0

,6
6

3
,9

3
1

-
-

-
(1

,7
0

0
,0

0
3

,1
2

7
)

(1
,7

0
0

,0
0

3
,1

2
7

)

-
-

-
-

-

-
-

-
-

-

-
-

-
(1

,7
0

0
,0

0
3

,1
2

7
)

(1
,7

0
0

,0
0

3
,1

2
7

)

-
(3

5
0

,5
8

9
,0

7
3

)
-

3
5

0
,5

8
9

,0
7

3
-

3
,9

2
4

,3
0

0
,0

0
0

2
3

,7
8

6
,8

9
1

,3
4

1
9

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

(2
2

,9
7

9
,5

3
0

,5
3

7
)

4
,7

4
0

,6
6

0
,8

0
4

To
ta

l 

R
e

se
rv

e
s

O
rd

in
ar

y 

Sh
ar

e
s 

C
ap

it
al

Su
rp

lu
s 

o
n

 

re
va

lu
a�

o
n

 

p
ro

p
e

rt
y,

 p
la

n
t 

an
d

 

e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

- 
n

e
t 

o
f 

ta
x

R
e

se
rv

e
s

Condensed Interim Statement of Cash Flows (Un-audited)

14 | Agritech Limited 

For the half year ended 30 June 2021

Note

Cash flows from opera�ng ac�vi�es

Cash (used in)/ generated from opera�ons 18

           

Income tax paid

                 

Staff re�rement benefits paid

                    

Long term loans and advances - net

                     

Long term deposits - net

                                  

Net cash (used in)/ from opera�ng ac�vi�es

           

Cash flows from inves�ng ac�vi�es

Capital expenditure incurred

Interest income received

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

Net cash used in inves�ng ac�vi�es

Cash flows from financing ac�vi�es

(Decrease) in long term finances

Increase/(decrease) in short term borrowings - net

Finance cost paid

Net cash from/(used in) financing ac�vi�es

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of period 20

The annexed notes 1 to 26 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial informa�on.

30 June 30 June

2021 2020

Rupees Rupees

(1,280,167,578)

 

533,912,782

                

(20,886,666)

 

(53,248,182)

                 

(4,850,213)

 

(209,509)

                       

1,388,260

 

2,621,325

                     

-

 

(15,514,484)

                 

(1,304,516,197)

 

467,561,932

                

(37,281,164)
 

(33,359,088)

7,903,007  12,698,829

1,811,901
 

-

(27,566,256)

 
(20,660,259)

(4,371,102)

 

(24,200,934)

897,528,370

 

(14,524)

(147,716,959)

 

(2,095,267)

745,440,309

 

(26,310,725)

(586,642,144)

 

420,590,948

                

(1,922,669,425)

 

(2,134,556,293)

            

(2,509,311,569)

 

(1,713,965,345)

            

Chief Execu�ve Chief Financial Officer

               

                     
Director
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Notes to the Condensed Interim Financial Information (Un-audited)
For the half year ended 30 June 2021

 2.4 Going concern assump�on

  Gas curtailment coupled with gas pricing issue to the Company’s urea plant has been the most crucial factor 
for the past few years’ opera�onal and liquidity issues of the Company. The fer�lizer plants on SNGPL 
including the Company’s Urea plant faced unprecedented gas curtailment since past few years. The 
Company has been financing its assets and opera�ons through high level of borrowings. Due to overall gas 
shortage in the system, Government of Pakistan (“GOP”) diverted gas from fer�lizer sector to other sectors 
par�cularly power sector during summer and domes�c sector during winter. This gas curtailment caused 
low urea produc�on versus available capacity resul�ng in con�nuous opera�onal and liquidity issues which 
further resulted in overdue borrowings and related mark-ups. 

  During past couple of years, Gas supply to the Company has witnessed improvements with regular imports 
of Liquefied Natural Gas (“LNG”) by the Government of Pakistan (“GOP”). Consistent LNG imports improved 
RLNG flow to Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited ("SNGPL") benefi�ng consumers including fer�lizer sector. 
Gas supply to the Company's urea plant was restored in the September 2018 on a blend of natural gas and 
RLNG. Subsequently in 2019 RLNG supplies at subsidized rate were provided to the company and plant was 
running on regular basis. In 2020 similar policy by GOP con�nued, however, with lower gas supplies than in 
2019. For the current year 2021, GOP at the start of the year has approved RLNG supply from March to 
November 2021 to meet the growing Urea demand in the country. However, the company faced gas 
curtailment at the peak of summer again whereby GOP diverted gas/RLNG to the Power sector which is 
likely to restored back from September. These condi�ons indicate existence of material uncertainty that 
may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to con�nue as a going concern and, therefore, it may not 
be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabili�es in the normal course of business.

  However, the management is confident that the Company will be able to con�nue as a going concern based 
on the expecta�on of con�nuous availability of gas/RLNG at subsidized rates and restructuring of its exis�ng 
over-due long-term debts and related mark-up under the rehabilita�on plan approved by shareholders 
which is currently filed in the Honorable Lahore High Court as per the provisions of repealed Companies 
Ordinance, 1984 and the following factors:

  The expecta�on of con�nuous availability of gas is based on the fact that the GOP is opera�ng both LNG 
terminals in the country with having a combined capacity of 1200 mmscfd.  Supply of RLNG is contracted for 
one terminal though a 15 year long term agreement with Government of Qatar, to import nearly 3.75 
million tons of LNG per year. The long term LNG supply is further augmented through another contract with 
Qatar. Addi�onally the procurement of  spot cargoes is also con�nued by GOP. SNGPL is receiving major flow 
of LNG imports under swap arrangement from both terminals. This has improved the flow of gas into SNGPL 
system and making available required gas volumes for the fer�lizer plants on SNGPL network.

  GOP’s renewed focus on the Food Security is the most cri�cal aspect of feeding the popula�on of more than 
210 million and fer�lizer, especially Urea plays a cri�cal role in enhancing the produc�on and yield of the 
crops. Urea demand in recent past has increased form an average 5.8 million tons to 6-6.2 million tons 
during last two years. Growing urea demand can only be met if all the plants in the country are operated on 
regular basis. Local produc�on ensures GOP with significant savings on precious Foreign Exchange as well as 
lower subsidy than expensive urea imports. The company is confident that on these basis, con�nuous gas 
supply solu�on likely to be worked out with GOP.

  With the support of its lenders, the management, for rehabilita�on of the Company, has prepared a scheme 
of arrangement ("the Scheme") to restructure its exis�ng over-due long term debts and related markup as 
of 31 December 2013 (proposed effec�ve date) through issuance of preference shares. The scheme also 
envisages se�lement / restructuring and repayment of that por�on of overdue markup that is not 
converted into preference shares. A�er the approval by the Board of Directors and Shareholders of the 
proposed scheme in their mee�ng held on 05 November 2013 and 10 December 2013 respec�vely, the said 
scheme was filed with Honorable Lahore High Court under the provisions of repealed Companies 
Ordinance, 1984 on 10 June 2016 for necessary sanc�on and order. As at the repor�ng date, the 
proceedings are in process and the order of the Lahore High Court is awaited.

1 Repor�ng En�ty

 Agritech Limited ("the Company") was incorporated in Pakistan on 15 December 1959 as an unlisted Public Limited 
Company under the repealed Companies Act, 1913 (now the Companies Act, 2017). The shares of the Company are 
quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange. The principal business of the Company is the produc�on and sale of Urea and 
Granulated Single Super Phosphate ("GSSP") fer�lizer.

 'The registered office of the Company is situated at 2nd Floor Asia Center, 8 – Babar Block, Main Boulevard, New 
Garden Town, Lahore. Geographical loca�ons of the manufacturing facili�es of the Company are located at:

 - 'Unit I located at Iskanderabad, District Mianwali; and 
 - 'Unit II at Ha�ar Road, Haripur

2 Basis of prepara�on

 2.1 Statement of compliance 

  These condensed interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accoun�ng and 
repor�ng standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accoun�ng and repor�ng standards applicable in Pakistan 
comprise of:

 -    Interna�onal Accoun�ng Standards (IAS) 34, Interim Financial Repor�ng, issued by the Interna�onal 
Accoun�ng Standards Board (IASB) as no�fied under the Companies Act, 2017; and

 -    Provisions of and direc�ves issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

 -    Where provisions of and direc�ves issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ with the requirements of 
IAS 34, the provisions of and direc�ves issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

 2.2 Basis of accoun�ng

  This condensed interim financial informa�on comprises the condensed interim balance sheet of Agritech 
Limited ("the Company"), as at 31 June 2021 and the related condensed interim profit and loss account, 
condensed interim statement of comprehensive income, condensed interim cash flow statement and 
condensed interim statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof.

  These condensed interim financial statements does not include all of the informa�on required for full 
annual financial statements and should be read in conjunc�on with the financial statements for the year 
ended on 31  December 2020.

  Compara�ve condensed interim statement of financial posi�on's numbers are extracted from the proposed 
annual audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020, whereas 
compara�ve interim statement of profit or loss, interim statement of comprehensive income, interim 
statement of cash flows and interim statement of changes in equity and related notes are stated from 
unaudited condensed interim financial statements of the Company for the six months period ended 30 June 
2020.

  This condensed interim financial statements are unaudited and being submi�ed to the shareholders as 
required under Sec�on 237 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the Lis�ng Regula�ons of the Pakistan Stock 
Exchange Limited.

 2.3 Judgments and es�mates

  The prepara�on of condensed interim financial statements requires management to make judgments, 
es�mates and assump�ons for the applica�on of accoun�ng policies and the reported amounts of assets 
and liabili�es, income and expense. Actual results may differ from these es�mates. In preparing these 
condensed interim financial statements, the significant judgments made by the management in applying 
accoun�ng policies and key sources of es�ma�on were the same as those that were applied to the financial 
statements as at and for the year ended 31  December 2020.
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Notes to the Condensed Interim Financial Information (Un-audited)
For the half year ended 30 June 2021

 2.4 Going concern assump�on

  Gas curtailment coupled with gas pricing issue to the Company’s urea plant has been the most crucial factor 
for the past few years’ opera�onal and liquidity issues of the Company. The fer�lizer plants on SNGPL 
including the Company’s Urea plant faced unprecedented gas curtailment since past few years. The 
Company has been financing its assets and opera�ons through high level of borrowings. Due to overall gas 
shortage in the system, Government of Pakistan (“GOP”) diverted gas from fer�lizer sector to other sectors 
par�cularly power sector during summer and domes�c sector during winter. This gas curtailment caused 
low urea produc�on versus available capacity resul�ng in con�nuous opera�onal and liquidity issues which 
further resulted in overdue borrowings and related mark-ups. 

  During past couple of years, Gas supply to the Company has witnessed improvements with regular imports 
of Liquefied Natural Gas (“LNG”) by the Government of Pakistan (“GOP”). Consistent LNG imports improved 
RLNG flow to Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited ("SNGPL") benefi�ng consumers including fer�lizer sector. 
Gas supply to the Company's urea plant was restored in the September 2018 on a blend of natural gas and 
RLNG. Subsequently in 2019 RLNG supplies at subsidized rate were provided to the company and plant was 
running on regular basis. In 2020 similar policy by GOP con�nued, however, with lower gas supplies than in 
2019. For the current year 2021, GOP at the start of the year has approved RLNG supply from March to 
November 2021 to meet the growing Urea demand in the country. However, the company faced gas 
curtailment at the peak of summer again whereby GOP diverted gas/RLNG to the Power sector which is 
likely to restored back from September. These condi�ons indicate existence of material uncertainty that 
may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to con�nue as a going concern and, therefore, it may not 
be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabili�es in the normal course of business.

  However, the management is confident that the Company will be able to con�nue as a going concern based 
on the expecta�on of con�nuous availability of gas/RLNG at subsidized rates and restructuring of its exis�ng 
over-due long-term debts and related mark-up under the rehabilita�on plan approved by shareholders 
which is currently filed in the Honorable Lahore High Court as per the provisions of repealed Companies 
Ordinance, 1984 and the following factors:

  The expecta�on of con�nuous availability of gas is based on the fact that the GOP is opera�ng both LNG 
terminals in the country with having a combined capacity of 1200 mmscfd.  Supply of RLNG is contracted for 
one terminal though a 15 year long term agreement with Government of Qatar, to import nearly 3.75 
million tons of LNG per year. The long term LNG supply is further augmented through another contract with 
Qatar. Addi�onally the procurement of  spot cargoes is also con�nued by GOP. SNGPL is receiving major flow 
of LNG imports under swap arrangement from both terminals. This has improved the flow of gas into SNGPL 
system and making available required gas volumes for the fer�lizer plants on SNGPL network.

  GOP’s renewed focus on the Food Security is the most cri�cal aspect of feeding the popula�on of more than 
210 million and fer�lizer, especially Urea plays a cri�cal role in enhancing the produc�on and yield of the 
crops. Urea demand in recent past has increased form an average 5.8 million tons to 6-6.2 million tons 
during last two years. Growing urea demand can only be met if all the plants in the country are operated on 
regular basis. Local produc�on ensures GOP with significant savings on precious Foreign Exchange as well as 
lower subsidy than expensive urea imports. The company is confident that on these basis, con�nuous gas 
supply solu�on likely to be worked out with GOP.

  With the support of its lenders, the management, for rehabilita�on of the Company, has prepared a scheme 
of arrangement ("the Scheme") to restructure its exis�ng over-due long term debts and related markup as 
of 31 December 2013 (proposed effec�ve date) through issuance of preference shares. The scheme also 
envisages se�lement / restructuring and repayment of that por�on of overdue markup that is not 
converted into preference shares. A�er the approval by the Board of Directors and Shareholders of the 
proposed scheme in their mee�ng held on 05 November 2013 and 10 December 2013 respec�vely, the said 
scheme was filed with Honorable Lahore High Court under the provisions of repealed Companies 
Ordinance, 1984 on 10 June 2016 for necessary sanc�on and order. As at the repor�ng date, the 
proceedings are in process and the order of the Lahore High Court is awaited.

1 Repor�ng En�ty

 Agritech Limited ("the Company") was incorporated in Pakistan on 15 December 1959 as an unlisted Public Limited 
Company under the repealed Companies Act, 1913 (now the Companies Act, 2017). The shares of the Company are 
quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange. The principal business of the Company is the produc�on and sale of Urea and 
Granulated Single Super Phosphate ("GSSP") fer�lizer.

 'The registered office of the Company is situated at 2nd Floor Asia Center, 8 – Babar Block, Main Boulevard, New 
Garden Town, Lahore. Geographical loca�ons of the manufacturing facili�es of the Company are located at:

 - 'Unit I located at Iskanderabad, District Mianwali; and 
 - 'Unit II at Ha�ar Road, Haripur

2 Basis of prepara�on

 2.1 Statement of compliance 

  These condensed interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accoun�ng and 
repor�ng standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accoun�ng and repor�ng standards applicable in Pakistan 
comprise of:

 -    Interna�onal Accoun�ng Standards (IAS) 34, Interim Financial Repor�ng, issued by the Interna�onal 
Accoun�ng Standards Board (IASB) as no�fied under the Companies Act, 2017; and

 -    Provisions of and direc�ves issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

 -    Where provisions of and direc�ves issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ with the requirements of 
IAS 34, the provisions of and direc�ves issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

 2.2 Basis of accoun�ng

  This condensed interim financial informa�on comprises the condensed interim balance sheet of Agritech 
Limited ("the Company"), as at 31 June 2021 and the related condensed interim profit and loss account, 
condensed interim statement of comprehensive income, condensed interim cash flow statement and 
condensed interim statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof.

  These condensed interim financial statements does not include all of the informa�on required for full 
annual financial statements and should be read in conjunc�on with the financial statements for the year 
ended on 31  December 2020.

  Compara�ve condensed interim statement of financial posi�on's numbers are extracted from the proposed 
annual audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020, whereas 
compara�ve interim statement of profit or loss, interim statement of comprehensive income, interim 
statement of cash flows and interim statement of changes in equity and related notes are stated from 
unaudited condensed interim financial statements of the Company for the six months period ended 30 June 
2020.

  This condensed interim financial statements are unaudited and being submi�ed to the shareholders as 
required under Sec�on 237 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the Lis�ng Regula�ons of the Pakistan Stock 
Exchange Limited.

 2.3 Judgments and es�mates

  The prepara�on of condensed interim financial statements requires management to make judgments, 
es�mates and assump�ons for the applica�on of accoun�ng policies and the reported amounts of assets 
and liabili�es, income and expense. Actual results may differ from these es�mates. In preparing these 
condensed interim financial statements, the significant judgments made by the management in applying 
accoun�ng policies and key sources of es�ma�on were the same as those that were applied to the financial 
statements as at and for the year ended 31  December 2020.
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5.1

Interest / mark-up based financing 

Islamic mode of financing

Types of redeemable capital

5 Redeemable Capital - Secured

Under interest/markup arrangement

Term Finance Cer�ficates - I

Term Finance Cer�ficates - II

Term Finance Cer�ficates - III

Privately Placed Term Finance Cer�ficates - IV

Privately Placed Term Finance Cer�ficates - V

Privately Placed Term Finance Cer�ficates - VI

Sukuks

Current maturity presented under current liabili�es

             
             

          

       

10,565,734,546 10,565,734,546

1,599,800,000 1,599,800,000

12,165,534,546 12,165,534,546

30 June 31 December

2021 2020

Un-audited Audited

Rupees Rupees

1,498,602,000

          

1,498,602,000

6,894,286,800

          

6,894,286,800

495,460,750

             

495,460,750

548,825,000

             

548,825,000

618,685,000 618,685,000

509,874,996 509,874,996

1,599,800,000 1,599,800,000

12,165,534,546 12,165,534,546

(12,165,534,546) (12,165,534,546)

- -

Notes to the Condensed Interim Financial Information (Un-audited)
For the half year ended 30 June 2021

 5.2 Overdue principal and markup are disclosed in Note 21 to the financial informa�on.

 5.3 Terms and condi�ons are same as those disclosed in annual financial statements for the year ended 31 
December 2020.

6 Long term finances 

Syndicate Term Finance - I

Syndicate Term Finance - II

Syndicate Term Finance - III

Bankislami Pakistan - Term Finance

Na�onal Bank of Pakistan Limited - Term Finance

Dubai Islamic Bank Limited - Term Finance

             

AL Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited - Diminishing Musharika

Current maturity presented under current liabili�es

6.1 Types of long term finances - secured

Interest / mark-up based financing 

Islamic mode of financing

30 June 31 December

2021 2020

Un-audited Audited

Rupees Rupees

3,000,000,000 3,000,000,000

471,537,000 471,537,000

2,840,145,329 2,840,145,329

300,000,000 300,000,000

132,083,735 132,083,735

365,000,000 365,000,000

                                   -   4,371,102

7,108,766,064

          

7,113,137,166

(7,108,766,064)

        

(7,113,137,166)

-

                               

-

6,743,766,064

          

6,743,766,064

365,000,000

             

369,371,102

7,108,766,064

          

7,113,137,166

  In addi�on to above, the Company sees strong poten�al in selling its spare land a�er the necessary legal and 
commercial approvals. In 2016, 216 kanals of Company's' land was acquired by Na�onal Highway Authority 
(NHA) for the construc�on of China Pakistan Economic Corridor (CPEC) sec�on Hakla-DI Khan that crosses 
through the land owned by the Company. With the development of CPEC in coming years, the Company 
foresee significant apprecia�on of its surplus land. The proceeds from sale of land will also help se�le long 
term liabili�es of the Company.

  The management believes that the measures as explained above will generate sufficient financial resources 
for the con�nuing opera�ons. Accordingly, these financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis 
and do not include any adjustments rela�ng to the realiza�on of its assets and liquida�on of any liabili�es 
that might be necessary should the Company be unable to con�nue as a going concern.

3 Statement of consistency in accoun�ng policies

 The accoun�ng policies and the methods of computa�on adopted in the prepara�on of these condensed interim 
financial statements are the same as those applied in the prepara�on of the financial statements for the year ended 
31 December 2020. 
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4 Issued, subscribed and paid up ordinary share capital

30 June 31 December

2021 2020

Un-audited Audited

Rupees Rupees

3,834,300,000 3,834,300,000

90,000,000

                

90,000,000

3,924,300,000

          

3,924,300,000

4.1 Ordinary shares of the Company held by associated undertaking at period/ year end are as follows: 

30 June 31 December

2021 2020

30 June 31 December

2021 2020

27.01% 27.01%                106,014,632               106,014,632 

4.56% 4.56%                  17,914,040                 17,914,040 

8.74% 8.74%                  34,306,400                 34,306,400 

                            1,000                            1,000 

(Percentage held) (Number of shares)

Na�onal Bank of Pakistan Limited

Faysal Bank Limited

Summit Bank Limited

Silk Bank Limited 0.00% 0.00%

383,430,000 (December 31, 2020: 383,430,000) class A ordinary 
shares of Rs.10 each fully paid in cash    

9,000,000 (December 31, 2020: 9,000,000) ordinary shares of 
Rs. 10 each  issued for considera�on other than cash
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5.1

Interest / mark-up based financing 

Islamic mode of financing

Types of redeemable capital

5 Redeemable Capital - Secured

Under interest/markup arrangement

Term Finance Cer�ficates - I

Term Finance Cer�ficates - II

Term Finance Cer�ficates - III

Privately Placed Term Finance Cer�ficates - IV

Privately Placed Term Finance Cer�ficates - V

Privately Placed Term Finance Cer�ficates - VI

Sukuks

Current maturity presented under current liabili�es

             
             

          

       

10,565,734,546 10,565,734,546

1,599,800,000 1,599,800,000

12,165,534,546 12,165,534,546

30 June 31 December

2021 2020

Un-audited Audited

Rupees Rupees

1,498,602,000

          

1,498,602,000

6,894,286,800

          

6,894,286,800

495,460,750

             

495,460,750

548,825,000

             

548,825,000

618,685,000 618,685,000

509,874,996 509,874,996

1,599,800,000 1,599,800,000

12,165,534,546 12,165,534,546

(12,165,534,546) (12,165,534,546)

- -

Notes to the Condensed Interim Financial Information (Un-audited)
For the half year ended 30 June 2021

 5.2 Overdue principal and markup are disclosed in Note 21 to the financial informa�on.

 5.3 Terms and condi�ons are same as those disclosed in annual financial statements for the year ended 31 
December 2020.

6 Long term finances 

Syndicate Term Finance - I

Syndicate Term Finance - II

Syndicate Term Finance - III

Bankislami Pakistan - Term Finance

Na�onal Bank of Pakistan Limited - Term Finance

Dubai Islamic Bank Limited - Term Finance

             

AL Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited - Diminishing Musharika

Current maturity presented under current liabili�es

6.1 Types of long term finances - secured

Interest / mark-up based financing 

Islamic mode of financing

30 June 31 December

2021 2020

Un-audited Audited

Rupees Rupees

3,000,000,000 3,000,000,000

471,537,000 471,537,000

2,840,145,329 2,840,145,329

300,000,000 300,000,000

132,083,735 132,083,735

365,000,000 365,000,000

                                   -   4,371,102

7,108,766,064

          

7,113,137,166

(7,108,766,064)

        

(7,113,137,166)

-

                               

-

6,743,766,064

          

6,743,766,064

365,000,000

             

369,371,102

7,108,766,064

          

7,113,137,166

  In addi�on to above, the Company sees strong poten�al in selling its spare land a�er the necessary legal and 
commercial approvals. In 2016, 216 kanals of Company's' land was acquired by Na�onal Highway Authority 
(NHA) for the construc�on of China Pakistan Economic Corridor (CPEC) sec�on Hakla-DI Khan that crosses 
through the land owned by the Company. With the development of CPEC in coming years, the Company 
foresee significant apprecia�on of its surplus land. The proceeds from sale of land will also help se�le long 
term liabili�es of the Company.

  The management believes that the measures as explained above will generate sufficient financial resources 
for the con�nuing opera�ons. Accordingly, these financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis 
and do not include any adjustments rela�ng to the realiza�on of its assets and liquida�on of any liabili�es 
that might be necessary should the Company be unable to con�nue as a going concern.

3 Statement of consistency in accoun�ng policies

 The accoun�ng policies and the methods of computa�on adopted in the prepara�on of these condensed interim 
financial statements are the same as those applied in the prepara�on of the financial statements for the year ended 
31 December 2020. 
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4 Issued, subscribed and paid up ordinary share capital

30 June 31 December

2021 2020

Un-audited Audited

Rupees Rupees

3,834,300,000 3,834,300,000

90,000,000

                

90,000,000

3,924,300,000

          

3,924,300,000

4.1 Ordinary shares of the Company held by associated undertaking at period/ year end are as follows: 

30 June 31 December

2021 2020

30 June 31 December

2021 2020

27.01% 27.01%                106,014,632               106,014,632 

4.56% 4.56%                  17,914,040                 17,914,040 

8.74% 8.74%                  34,306,400                 34,306,400 

                            1,000                            1,000 

(Percentage held) (Number of shares)

Na�onal Bank of Pakistan Limited

Faysal Bank Limited

Summit Bank Limited

Silk Bank Limited 0.00% 0.00%

383,430,000 (December 31, 2020: 383,430,000) class A ordinary 
shares of Rs.10 each fully paid in cash    

9,000,000 (December 31, 2020: 9,000,000) ordinary shares of 
Rs. 10 each  issued for considera�on other than cash
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Notes to the Condensed Interim Financial Information (Un-audited)
For the half year ended 30 June 2021

10 Trade and other payables

Trade and other creditors

Accrued liabili�es

Security deposits and reten�on money

Advances from customers

Others

30 June

2021

31 December 

2020

Un-audited Audited

Rupees Rupees

10.1            2,508,410,200           1,881,736,485 

               143,026,442               113,095,904 

                 19,018,660                 18,597,680 

               896,967,186               228,827,852 

                 63,639,190 54,457,394

3,631,061,678 2,296,715,315

         

         

            

            

            

 10.1 This includes current por�on of GIDC payable amoun�ng to Rs. 1,229 million (2020: Rs. 849 million). 
During last year, the company had filed pe��on against recovery of GIDC which has been decided during 
this period in favor of the company holding that GIDC is not payable �ll the exercise of factual 
determina�on of GIDC liability is finalized by the higher powered commi�ee formed in compliance of the 
Supreme Court order.        

11 Con�ngencies and commitments

 11.1 Con�ngencies

 11.1.1 Con�ngencies rela�ng to Banks

 11.1.1.1 During the year 2018, a suit has been filed by Allied Bank Limited ("ABL") against the Company under 
sec�on 9 of the Financial Ins�tu�ons (Recovery of Finances) Ordinance, 2001 for recovery of Rs. 201.66 
million along with cost of funds, from the date of default by the Company in fulfilling their financial 
obliga�ons in return of the facility availed. The Company has filed an applica�on for leave to defend in this 
suit. The legal advisor expects a good likelihood of success in this ma�er.

 11.1.1.2 During the year 2019, a civil suit no. 1768/2019 has been filed by Pak Libya Holding Company (Private) 
Limited ("PLHCL") against the Company for Rs. 1,500.92 million under sec�on 9 of the Financial Ins�tu�on 
(Recovery Of Finances) Ordinance, 2001 before the Honorable Lahore High Court. The Company filed a 
pe��on for Leave to Appear (PLA) number 11058/19 under sec�on 10 of the Financial Ins�tu�on 
(Recovery Of Finances) Ordinance, 2001 which entails that the instant suit cannot proceed or tried as the 
ma�er is in rela�on to pe��on under sec�on 284 to 287 of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 for 
scheme of arrangement / restructuring bearing number 21/2016 which is pending adjudica�on before 
the Honorable Lahore High Court.

 11.1.1.3 During the year 2019, through a �tled suit, the Company seeks, inter alia, the removal of a lien imposed by 
Meezan Bank Limited ("MBL") on the account of the Company to the extent of Rs. 40.21 million. MBL has 
imposed lien claiming recovery of alleged outstanding amount due to HSBC Bank (which was acquired by 
the MBL in 2015). The Company alleges that MBL has imposed this lien without determina�on of actual 
liability and without any regard to due process of law. The suit is pending adjudica�on before the Learned 
Banking Court Lahore. Meezan Bank Limited (MBL) has filed countersuit for the recovery of Rs. 40.21 
million from the Company. The Company has a good likelihood of success in this ma�er. The suit is pending 
adjudica�on before the Learned Banking Court Lahore.

 11.1.1.4 During the year 2019, civil suit no. 29172/2019 has been filed by Soneri Bank against the Company for 
recovery of Rs. 738,452,864. Applica�on for leave to appear and Defend the above men�oned suit under 
the provisions of Financial Ins�tu�ons (Recovery of Finances), Ordinance 2001 has been filed in the 
Lahore High Court on behalf of the defendant, which is pending before the Honorable Lahore High Court. 
In view of the legal advisor, this suit lacks merit as it is filed by one of the creditors who has agreed to the 
Scheme of arrangement date 31-12-2013, which is pending before the Honorable Lahore High Court.

30 June

2021

31 December 

2020

Un-audited Audited

Rupees Rupees

7 Conver�ble, redeemable preference shares

1,593,342,690

          

1,593,342,690

1,593,342,690 1,593,342,690

Faysal Bank Limited 31,035,594

                

31,035,594

Na�onal Bank of Pakistan 3,458,756

                  

3,458,756

34,494,350

                

34,494,350

30 June

2021

31 December 

2020

Un-audited Audited

Rupees Rupees

8 Long term payables

Payable to Contractor 31,135,199 31,135,199

Payable to SNGPL - GIDC 1,440,094,364 1,709,180,320

1,471,229,563 1,740,315,519

9 Short term borrowings - secured

Interest / mark-up based loans - secured 3,987,099,454 2,946,417,769

Islamic mode of financing - secured 561,735,175 700,567,247

4,548,834,629 3,646,985,016

Preference shares of Rs. 10 each

159,334,269 (31 December 2020: 159,334,269) 

Shares issued fully paid in cash

--- (Number of shares) ---
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 6.2 All terms and condi�ons of these facili�es are same as those disclosed in annual financial statements for the 
year ended 31 December 2020.

 6.3 Overdue principal and markup are disclosed in Note 21 to this financial informa�on.

 7.1 The preference shareholders have a preferred right of dividend at the rate of 11% per annum on cumula�ve 
basis (on annual basis).

 7.2 Preference shares of the company held by related / associated companies as at period end are as follows:

 9.1 All terms and condi�ons applicable on these facili�es are same as those disclosed in the annual financial 
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.

 9.2 Overdue principal and markup are disclosed in Note 21 to this financial informa�on.
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Notes to the Condensed Interim Financial Information (Un-audited)
For the half year ended 30 June 2021

10 Trade and other payables

Trade and other creditors

Accrued liabili�es

Security deposits and reten�on money

Advances from customers

Others

30 June

2021

31 December 

2020

Un-audited Audited

Rupees Rupees

10.1            2,508,410,200           1,881,736,485 

               143,026,442               113,095,904 

                 19,018,660                 18,597,680 

               896,967,186               228,827,852 

                 63,639,190 54,457,394

3,631,061,678 2,296,715,315

         

         

            

            

            

 10.1 This includes current por�on of GIDC payable amoun�ng to Rs. 1,229 million (2020: Rs. 849 million). 
During last year, the company had filed pe��on against recovery of GIDC which has been decided during 
this period in favor of the company holding that GIDC is not payable �ll the exercise of factual 
determina�on of GIDC liability is finalized by the higher powered commi�ee formed in compliance of the 
Supreme Court order.        

11 Con�ngencies and commitments

 11.1 Con�ngencies

 11.1.1 Con�ngencies rela�ng to Banks

 11.1.1.1 During the year 2018, a suit has been filed by Allied Bank Limited ("ABL") against the Company under 
sec�on 9 of the Financial Ins�tu�ons (Recovery of Finances) Ordinance, 2001 for recovery of Rs. 201.66 
million along with cost of funds, from the date of default by the Company in fulfilling their financial 
obliga�ons in return of the facility availed. The Company has filed an applica�on for leave to defend in this 
suit. The legal advisor expects a good likelihood of success in this ma�er.

 11.1.1.2 During the year 2019, a civil suit no. 1768/2019 has been filed by Pak Libya Holding Company (Private) 
Limited ("PLHCL") against the Company for Rs. 1,500.92 million under sec�on 9 of the Financial Ins�tu�on 
(Recovery Of Finances) Ordinance, 2001 before the Honorable Lahore High Court. The Company filed a 
pe��on for Leave to Appear (PLA) number 11058/19 under sec�on 10 of the Financial Ins�tu�on 
(Recovery Of Finances) Ordinance, 2001 which entails that the instant suit cannot proceed or tried as the 
ma�er is in rela�on to pe��on under sec�on 284 to 287 of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 for 
scheme of arrangement / restructuring bearing number 21/2016 which is pending adjudica�on before 
the Honorable Lahore High Court.

 11.1.1.3 During the year 2019, through a �tled suit, the Company seeks, inter alia, the removal of a lien imposed by 
Meezan Bank Limited ("MBL") on the account of the Company to the extent of Rs. 40.21 million. MBL has 
imposed lien claiming recovery of alleged outstanding amount due to HSBC Bank (which was acquired by 
the MBL in 2015). The Company alleges that MBL has imposed this lien without determina�on of actual 
liability and without any regard to due process of law. The suit is pending adjudica�on before the Learned 
Banking Court Lahore. Meezan Bank Limited (MBL) has filed countersuit for the recovery of Rs. 40.21 
million from the Company. The Company has a good likelihood of success in this ma�er. The suit is pending 
adjudica�on before the Learned Banking Court Lahore.

 11.1.1.4 During the year 2019, civil suit no. 29172/2019 has been filed by Soneri Bank against the Company for 
recovery of Rs. 738,452,864. Applica�on for leave to appear and Defend the above men�oned suit under 
the provisions of Financial Ins�tu�ons (Recovery of Finances), Ordinance 2001 has been filed in the 
Lahore High Court on behalf of the defendant, which is pending before the Honorable Lahore High Court. 
In view of the legal advisor, this suit lacks merit as it is filed by one of the creditors who has agreed to the 
Scheme of arrangement date 31-12-2013, which is pending before the Honorable Lahore High Court.

30 June

2021

31 December 

2020

Un-audited Audited

Rupees Rupees

7 Conver�ble, redeemable preference shares

1,593,342,690

          

1,593,342,690

1,593,342,690 1,593,342,690

Faysal Bank Limited 31,035,594

                

31,035,594

Na�onal Bank of Pakistan 3,458,756

                  

3,458,756

34,494,350

                

34,494,350

30 June

2021

31 December 

2020

Un-audited Audited

Rupees Rupees

8 Long term payables

Payable to Contractor 31,135,199 31,135,199

Payable to SNGPL - GIDC 1,440,094,364 1,709,180,320

1,471,229,563 1,740,315,519

9 Short term borrowings - secured

Interest / mark-up based loans - secured 3,987,099,454 2,946,417,769

Islamic mode of financing - secured 561,735,175 700,567,247

4,548,834,629 3,646,985,016

Preference shares of Rs. 10 each

159,334,269 (31 December 2020: 159,334,269) 

Shares issued fully paid in cash

--- (Number of shares) ---
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 6.2 All terms and condi�ons of these facili�es are same as those disclosed in annual financial statements for the 
year ended 31 December 2020.

 6.3 Overdue principal and markup are disclosed in Note 21 to this financial informa�on.

 7.1 The preference shareholders have a preferred right of dividend at the rate of 11% per annum on cumula�ve 
basis (on annual basis).

 7.2 Preference shares of the company held by related / associated companies as at period end are as follows:

 9.1 All terms and condi�ons applicable on these facili�es are same as those disclosed in the annual financial 
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.

 9.2 Overdue principal and markup are disclosed in Note 21 to this financial informa�on.
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  The Company, being aggrieved, preferred an appeal before CIR-A who vide Order No. 15 dated 17 March 
2014 deleted the addi�ons to the tune of Rs. 47.33 million and upheld the remaining amount. The tax 
authority has filed an appeal before ATIR, Lahore which has been disposed off during the period  and order 
passed of the learned CIR (Appeals) has been upheld. The department has not filed any appeal against this 
order of ATIR.        

 11.1.2.5 Income tax return for tax year 2012 was filed under the self-assessment scheme declaring loss of Rs. 
18,120.36 million and a refund of Rs. 514.29 million was claimed. Later on the said return was revised 
resul�ng in increase of refunds at Rs. 542. 78 million wherein previous year refunds were also claimed.         

  The DCIR passed rec�fica�on order under sec�on 221 of the Ordinance amending the annual income tax 
return. Being aggrieved, the Company filed and appeal before CIR-A. The Order was passed in favor of the 
Company while tax department has filed appeal before ATIR, Lahore which has been disposed off during 
the period  and order passed of the learned CIR (Appeals) has been upheld. The department has not filed 
any appeal against this order of ATIR.        

  The Addi�onal Commissioner Inland Revenue ("Adl. CIR")  issued an order dated 09 February 2017 to 
amend the assessment under sec�on 122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 wherein the Adl. CIR 
charged turnover tax on other income and crea�ng a demand of Rs. 30.73 million. The Company being 
aggrieved filed an appeal in the office of CIR-A which is pending for adjudica�on.

 11.1.2.6 Income tax return for tax year 30 June 2013 was filed under the self-assessment scheme declaring tax loss 
for the year amoun�ng to Rs. 21.70 billion and refund of Rs. 109.38 million.

  Tax department ini�ated proceedings under sec�on 161/205 of the Ordinance and demand was created 
to the tune of Rs. 3.82 million. The Company, being aggrieved filed appeal before CIR-A who vide its Order 
No. 01 dated 04 March 2020 passed ex-parte Order upholding the demand created by tax department. 
The Company, being aggrieved, filed an appeal before ATIR, Lahore which is pending for adjudica�on.

  The Adl. CIR ini�ated proceedings under sec�on 122 of the Ordinance for the amendment of assessment 
whereby passed Order under sec�on 122(5A) of the Ordinance dated 25 June 2019 through which no 
demand was created, however, deprecia�on loss amoun�ng to Rs. 1.8 billion was curtailed. The Company, 
being aggrieved, filed appeal before CIR-A which is pending for fixa�on.

 11.1.2.7 The Company filed its income tax return for tax year 2014 (star�ng from 01 July 2013 to 31 December 
2013.), declaring tax loss for the period amoun�ng to Rs. 457.10 million and tax refund amoun�ng to Rs. 
24.32 million.

  The Company was selected for audit through computerized random ballo�ng by FBR. DCIR passed order 
under sec�on 122(1) of the Ordinance dated 31 October 2017 wherein loss was curtailed to Rs. 41.61 
million and resultantly refunds come to Rs. 24.28 million. Being aggrieved, the Company filed an appeal 
before CIR-A that is pending for fixa�on.

  Proceedings under sec�on 161/236G and 236H of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 in respect of tax year 
2014 was ini�ated by the department against the Company and a demand of Rs. 34.61 million was created 
by order dated 24 May 2017. However, the Company filed an appeal in the office of Commissioner Inland 
Revenue Appeals-I which is pending for fixa�on. The said demand has been adjusted against refunds of 
Tax Year 2016 vide adjustment memo dated 23-06-2017.

 11.1.2.8 The Company had filed income tax return for tax year 2015 declaring loss of Rs. 4.074 billion and claiming a 
refund of Rs. 84.593 million.

  Proceedings under sec�on 161/236G and 236H of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 in respect of tax year 
2015 was ini�ated by the department against the Company and a demand of Rs. 16.72 million was created 
by Order dated 24 May 2017. The Company filed an appeal in the office of Commissioner Inland Revenue 
Appeals-I who have confirmed the demand created by the department. The Company being aggrieved 
preferred an appeal with the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue which is pending for fixa�on.
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 11.1.1.5 During last year, civil suit no. 23043/2020 has been filed by Bank Alfalah Limited in the Honorable Lahore 
High Court in its jurisdic�on under the Financial Ins�tu�ons (Recovery of Finances) Ordinance, 2001 for 
the recovery of Rs. 1,969.88 million including markup along with cost of funds and other charges �ll the 
realiza�on of whole amount by sale of mortgaged, hypothecated proper�es and other assets. The 
Company has filed PLA No. 40218 in the �tled suit in response to which the Bank Alfalah Limited filed the 
replica�on which is in process of arguments. The Company has good arguable case in this ma�er.

 11.1.1.6 During the period, a civil suit has been filed by Na�onal Bank of Pakistan (a related party) in the Honorable 
Lahore High Court under the Financial Ins�tu�ons (Recovery of Finances) Ordinance, 2001 for the 
recovery of Rs. 6,497 million including markup along with cost of funds and other charges. The legal 
advisor of the Company is of the view that this suit lacks merit  as the instant suit cannot be proceeded or 
tried as the ma�er is in rela�on to pe��on under sec�on 284 to 287 of the repealed Companies 
Ordinance, 1984 for scheme of arrangement / restructuring  is pending for adjudica�on before the 
Honorable Lahore High Court.

 11.1.2 Taxa�on con�ngencies

 11.1.2.1 Income tax return for the tax year ended 30 June 2008 was filed under the self-assessment scheme. 
Subsequently, the Company filed a revised return declaring loss of Rs. 4,206.80 million and claimed refund 
of Rs. 26.75 million. However, the Addi�onal Commissioner Inland Revenue (“ACIR”) amended the 
assessment under sec�on 122(5A) of the Ordinance vide his order dated 30 December 2013 and assessed 
tax loss at Rs. 1,106.38 million.

  The Company being aggrieved preferred an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue (“CIR”) on 17 
June 2014 against the aforemen�oned order. The appeal was heard on 23 July 2014 and was par�ally 
decided in favor of the Company. Resultantly, the company preferred an appeal before Appellate Tribunal 
Inland Revenue ("ATIR") which is pending fixa�on.

 11.1.2.2 Income tax return for the tax year ended 30 June 2009 was filed under the self-assessment scheme. 
Subsequently, the Company filed a revised return declaring loss of Rs. 5,657.31 million  and claiming 
refund of Rs. 140.27 million. However, the Addi�onal Commissioner Inland Revenue (“ACIR”) amended 
the assessment under sec�on 122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance vide his order dated 30 January 2015 
whereby crea�ng a demand of Rs. 42.88 million.

  The Company being aggrieved preferred an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR 
(A)) on 16 June 2015. The case was decided by CIR (A) vide order no. 05 dated 05 April 2018 wherein 
demand of Rs. 22.11 million was deleted by CIR (A), against which an appeal effect order was passed. 
Being aggrieved, an appeal has been filed in Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue ("ATIR") which is pending 
for fixa�on.

 11.1.2.3 Income tax return for the tax year ended 30 June 2010 was filed under the self-assessment scheme. 
Subsequently, the company filed revised return declaring loss of Rs. 8,179 million and claiming refund of 
Rs. 69.027 million. Income tax audit was conducted by DCIR under sec�on 214C of the Ordinance whereby 
assessment was amended under sec�on 122(1)/122(5) of the Ordinance wherein various addi�ons were 
made to the tune of Rs. 7,121 million.

  The Company, being aggrieved, filed an appeal before CIR-A who, vide Order No. 13 dated 12 June 2013 
annulled the order of DCIR and deleted all addi�ons to the tune of 7,121 million The tax authority 
preferred appeal before ATIR, Lahore which is pending for fixa�on.

 11.1.2.4 Income tax return for tax year 2011 was filed under the self-assessment scheme declaring a tax loss of Rs. 
9,327.07 million and a refund of Rs  1.16 million was claimed. Later on, the said return was revised 
resul�ng in increase of refunds due to claim of previous years refunds. The Company was selected for 
audit under sec�on 214C of the Income tax Ordinance (ITO), 2001 and on comple�on of audit 
proceedings, the assessment was amended under sec�on 122(1) and 122(5) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 
2001 and addi�ons amoun�ng to  Rs. 77.98 million were made to the assessment.
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  The Company, being aggrieved, preferred an appeal before CIR-A who vide Order No. 15 dated 17 March 
2014 deleted the addi�ons to the tune of Rs. 47.33 million and upheld the remaining amount. The tax 
authority has filed an appeal before ATIR, Lahore which has been disposed off during the period  and order 
passed of the learned CIR (Appeals) has been upheld. The department has not filed any appeal against this 
order of ATIR.        

 11.1.2.5 Income tax return for tax year 2012 was filed under the self-assessment scheme declaring loss of Rs. 
18,120.36 million and a refund of Rs. 514.29 million was claimed. Later on the said return was revised 
resul�ng in increase of refunds at Rs. 542. 78 million wherein previous year refunds were also claimed.         

  The DCIR passed rec�fica�on order under sec�on 221 of the Ordinance amending the annual income tax 
return. Being aggrieved, the Company filed and appeal before CIR-A. The Order was passed in favor of the 
Company while tax department has filed appeal before ATIR, Lahore which has been disposed off during 
the period  and order passed of the learned CIR (Appeals) has been upheld. The department has not filed 
any appeal against this order of ATIR.        

  The Addi�onal Commissioner Inland Revenue ("Adl. CIR")  issued an order dated 09 February 2017 to 
amend the assessment under sec�on 122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 wherein the Adl. CIR 
charged turnover tax on other income and crea�ng a demand of Rs. 30.73 million. The Company being 
aggrieved filed an appeal in the office of CIR-A which is pending for adjudica�on.

 11.1.2.6 Income tax return for tax year 30 June 2013 was filed under the self-assessment scheme declaring tax loss 
for the year amoun�ng to Rs. 21.70 billion and refund of Rs. 109.38 million.

  Tax department ini�ated proceedings under sec�on 161/205 of the Ordinance and demand was created 
to the tune of Rs. 3.82 million. The Company, being aggrieved filed appeal before CIR-A who vide its Order 
No. 01 dated 04 March 2020 passed ex-parte Order upholding the demand created by tax department. 
The Company, being aggrieved, filed an appeal before ATIR, Lahore which is pending for adjudica�on.

  The Adl. CIR ini�ated proceedings under sec�on 122 of the Ordinance for the amendment of assessment 
whereby passed Order under sec�on 122(5A) of the Ordinance dated 25 June 2019 through which no 
demand was created, however, deprecia�on loss amoun�ng to Rs. 1.8 billion was curtailed. The Company, 
being aggrieved, filed appeal before CIR-A which is pending for fixa�on.

 11.1.2.7 The Company filed its income tax return for tax year 2014 (star�ng from 01 July 2013 to 31 December 
2013.), declaring tax loss for the period amoun�ng to Rs. 457.10 million and tax refund amoun�ng to Rs. 
24.32 million.

  The Company was selected for audit through computerized random ballo�ng by FBR. DCIR passed order 
under sec�on 122(1) of the Ordinance dated 31 October 2017 wherein loss was curtailed to Rs. 41.61 
million and resultantly refunds come to Rs. 24.28 million. Being aggrieved, the Company filed an appeal 
before CIR-A that is pending for fixa�on.

  Proceedings under sec�on 161/236G and 236H of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 in respect of tax year 
2014 was ini�ated by the department against the Company and a demand of Rs. 34.61 million was created 
by order dated 24 May 2017. However, the Company filed an appeal in the office of Commissioner Inland 
Revenue Appeals-I which is pending for fixa�on. The said demand has been adjusted against refunds of 
Tax Year 2016 vide adjustment memo dated 23-06-2017.

 11.1.2.8 The Company had filed income tax return for tax year 2015 declaring loss of Rs. 4.074 billion and claiming a 
refund of Rs. 84.593 million.

  Proceedings under sec�on 161/236G and 236H of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 in respect of tax year 
2015 was ini�ated by the department against the Company and a demand of Rs. 16.72 million was created 
by Order dated 24 May 2017. The Company filed an appeal in the office of Commissioner Inland Revenue 
Appeals-I who have confirmed the demand created by the department. The Company being aggrieved 
preferred an appeal with the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue which is pending for fixa�on.
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 11.1.1.5 During last year, civil suit no. 23043/2020 has been filed by Bank Alfalah Limited in the Honorable Lahore 
High Court in its jurisdic�on under the Financial Ins�tu�ons (Recovery of Finances) Ordinance, 2001 for 
the recovery of Rs. 1,969.88 million including markup along with cost of funds and other charges �ll the 
realiza�on of whole amount by sale of mortgaged, hypothecated proper�es and other assets. The 
Company has filed PLA No. 40218 in the �tled suit in response to which the Bank Alfalah Limited filed the 
replica�on which is in process of arguments. The Company has good arguable case in this ma�er.

 11.1.1.6 During the period, a civil suit has been filed by Na�onal Bank of Pakistan (a related party) in the Honorable 
Lahore High Court under the Financial Ins�tu�ons (Recovery of Finances) Ordinance, 2001 for the 
recovery of Rs. 6,497 million including markup along with cost of funds and other charges. The legal 
advisor of the Company is of the view that this suit lacks merit  as the instant suit cannot be proceeded or 
tried as the ma�er is in rela�on to pe��on under sec�on 284 to 287 of the repealed Companies 
Ordinance, 1984 for scheme of arrangement / restructuring  is pending for adjudica�on before the 
Honorable Lahore High Court.

 11.1.2 Taxa�on con�ngencies

 11.1.2.1 Income tax return for the tax year ended 30 June 2008 was filed under the self-assessment scheme. 
Subsequently, the Company filed a revised return declaring loss of Rs. 4,206.80 million and claimed refund 
of Rs. 26.75 million. However, the Addi�onal Commissioner Inland Revenue (“ACIR”) amended the 
assessment under sec�on 122(5A) of the Ordinance vide his order dated 30 December 2013 and assessed 
tax loss at Rs. 1,106.38 million.

  The Company being aggrieved preferred an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue (“CIR”) on 17 
June 2014 against the aforemen�oned order. The appeal was heard on 23 July 2014 and was par�ally 
decided in favor of the Company. Resultantly, the company preferred an appeal before Appellate Tribunal 
Inland Revenue ("ATIR") which is pending fixa�on.

 11.1.2.2 Income tax return for the tax year ended 30 June 2009 was filed under the self-assessment scheme. 
Subsequently, the Company filed a revised return declaring loss of Rs. 5,657.31 million  and claiming 
refund of Rs. 140.27 million. However, the Addi�onal Commissioner Inland Revenue (“ACIR”) amended 
the assessment under sec�on 122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance vide his order dated 30 January 2015 
whereby crea�ng a demand of Rs. 42.88 million.

  The Company being aggrieved preferred an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR 
(A)) on 16 June 2015. The case was decided by CIR (A) vide order no. 05 dated 05 April 2018 wherein 
demand of Rs. 22.11 million was deleted by CIR (A), against which an appeal effect order was passed. 
Being aggrieved, an appeal has been filed in Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue ("ATIR") which is pending 
for fixa�on.

 11.1.2.3 Income tax return for the tax year ended 30 June 2010 was filed under the self-assessment scheme. 
Subsequently, the company filed revised return declaring loss of Rs. 8,179 million and claiming refund of 
Rs. 69.027 million. Income tax audit was conducted by DCIR under sec�on 214C of the Ordinance whereby 
assessment was amended under sec�on 122(1)/122(5) of the Ordinance wherein various addi�ons were 
made to the tune of Rs. 7,121 million.

  The Company, being aggrieved, filed an appeal before CIR-A who, vide Order No. 13 dated 12 June 2013 
annulled the order of DCIR and deleted all addi�ons to the tune of 7,121 million The tax authority 
preferred appeal before ATIR, Lahore which is pending for fixa�on.

 11.1.2.4 Income tax return for tax year 2011 was filed under the self-assessment scheme declaring a tax loss of Rs. 
9,327.07 million and a refund of Rs  1.16 million was claimed. Later on, the said return was revised 
resul�ng in increase of refunds due to claim of previous years refunds. The Company was selected for 
audit under sec�on 214C of the Income tax Ordinance (ITO), 2001 and on comple�on of audit 
proceedings, the assessment was amended under sec�on 122(1) and 122(5) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 
2001 and addi�ons amoun�ng to  Rs. 77.98 million were made to the assessment.



Interim Financial Report | 25

Notes to the Condensed Interim Financial Information (Un-audited)
For the half year ended 30 June 2021

12 Property, plant and equipment

Opera�ng fixed assets

Capital work in progress

12.1 Opera�ng fixed assets

Net book value at start of the period/ year

Add: Addi�ons during the period/ year

Less: Disposals during the period/ year - net book value

Deprecia�on for the period/ year

12.1.1

Net book value at end of the period/ year

Addi�ons during the period / year - cost 

Owned assets

Plant, machinery, electrical and other installa�ons

Buildings on freehold land

Residen�al colony assets

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment

Vehicles and rail transport

Catalyst

30 June 31 December

2021 2020

Note Un-audited Audited

Rupees Rupees

12.1 57,770,020,744

       

58,517,324,878

804,880

                      

18,568,295

57,770,825,624

       

58,535,893,173

58,517,324,878

       

59,996,710,030

12.1.1 55,044,581

                

117,005,717

681,308

                      

-

801,667,407

             

1,596,390,869

802,348,715

             

1,596,390,869

57,770,020,744
       

58,517,324,878

5,663,818

                  

61,093,796

16,620,042

                

-

524,016

                      

16,850,404

2,337,719 8,601,647

11,481,500 24,145,000

18,417,486 6,314,870

55,044,581 117,005,717                  

13

               599,970,436               480,492,784 

                   6,294,477                    6,700,629 

                 12,489,005                 15,197,148 

                 36,000,000                 36,000,000 

                   7,045,294                    7,567,322 

                   1,916,192                    1,916,192 

                   6,892,906                    1,346,250 

           1,762,116,199           1,345,817,803 

               812,227,932               812,227,932 

                 89,905,688                 82,342,759 

           3,334,858,129           2,789,608,819

Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables

Advances to suppliers - unsecured, considered good

Advances to employees - secured, considered good

    -against salaries and post employment benefits

    -against purchases and expenses

Deposit with Islamabad High Court  

Prepayments

Deposits against Ijarah

Receivable from Government of Pakistan

Sales Tax Receivable

Agricultural Subsidy Receivable 

Other receivables

Less: provision against doub�ul receivables             (215,000,000)             (219,897,199)

           3,119,858,129           2,569,711,620 
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 11.1.2.9 Income tax return of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2017 (tax year 2018) was filed on 28-
11-2018 based on management accounts (due to non-finaliza�on of its audited accounts of 2017) 
declaring a loss of Rs. 2.776 billion while claiming a refund of Rs. 56.767 million. The Company had 
received a no�ce from FBR under sec�on 120(3) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 dated 27 June 2019 
for submission of audited accounts, which were furnished on 14 November 2019. It is understood  that 
the changes in management accounts and audited accounts have no material impact on current tax 
liability, business losses or deprecia�on losses declared in the tax return.

 11.1.2.10 The Company was selected for sales tax audit under sec�on 72B/25 for tax period July 2010 to June 2011 
of the Act wherein the DCIR passed Order by comple�ng the audit proceedings and created demand to 
the tune of Rs. 4.60 million. The Company, being aggrieved, preferred appeal before CIR-A who reduced 
the demand to the tune of Rs. 4.19 million vide order No. 06 dated 06 September 2013. Being aggrieved, 
the Company filed an appeal before ATIR, Lahore which is pending for fixa�on.

 11.1.2.11 The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue ("DCIR") passed an order u/s 11(2) of the Sales Tax Act, 1990 
for tax period June 2013 to October 2014 dated 26 January 2015 whereby crea�ng demand of Rs. 165.70 
million. The Company being aggrieved preferred an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue-Appeals 
(CIR (A)) dated 31 July 2015 against the said order. The Learned CIR (A) passed an order dated 06 October 
2015, annulling the said Order. Resultantly, the department preferred an appeal before the Appellate 
Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) against the order of CIR (A) which is pending for fixa�on.

 11.1.2.12 The DCIR passed an assessment order under Sales Tax Act, 1990 (the Act) pertaining to the period July 
2009 to June 2010 dated 27 June 2012 crea�ng demand of Rs. 4.96 million. The Company, being 
aggrieved, filed an appeal before CIR-A who passed the Order on 16 November 2012, reduced the said 
demand to Rs.4.51 million. Being aggrieved, the department filed an appeal before ATIR, Lahore which 
has been disposed off during the period and order passed of the learned CIR (Appeals) has been upheld. 
The department has not filed any appeal against this order of ATIR.

  Based on opinion of tax advisors handling income tax and sales tax li�ga�ons, the management believes 
that the Company has strong legal grounds against each case and that no financial liability is expected to 
accrue. Accordingly, no provision has been made in these financial statements.        

 11.1.3 Other Con�ngencies

  There is no material change in status of such con�ngencies from the preceding published financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020.

 11.2 Commitments  

 11.2.1 Commitments under irrevocable le�ers of credit for:

30 June 31 December

2021 2020

Un-audited Audited

Rupees Rupees

                   3,304,782                 10,594,605 - purchase of plant and machinery

- purchase of raw material                                    -                   46,545,000 

                   3,304,782                 57,139,605 
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12 Property, plant and equipment

Opera�ng fixed assets

Capital work in progress

12.1 Opera�ng fixed assets

Net book value at start of the period/ year

Add: Addi�ons during the period/ year

Less: Disposals during the period/ year - net book value

Deprecia�on for the period/ year

12.1.1

Net book value at end of the period/ year

Addi�ons during the period / year - cost 

Owned assets

Plant, machinery, electrical and other installa�ons

Buildings on freehold land

Residen�al colony assets

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment

Vehicles and rail transport

Catalyst

30 June 31 December

2021 2020

Note Un-audited Audited

Rupees Rupees

12.1 57,770,020,744

       

58,517,324,878

804,880

                      

18,568,295

57,770,825,624

       

58,535,893,173

58,517,324,878

       

59,996,710,030

12.1.1 55,044,581

                

117,005,717

681,308

                      

-

801,667,407

             

1,596,390,869

802,348,715

             

1,596,390,869

57,770,020,744
       

58,517,324,878

5,663,818

                  

61,093,796

16,620,042

                

-

524,016

                      

16,850,404

2,337,719 8,601,647

11,481,500 24,145,000

18,417,486 6,314,870

55,044,581 117,005,717                  

13

               599,970,436               480,492,784 

                   6,294,477                    6,700,629 

                 12,489,005                 15,197,148 

                 36,000,000                 36,000,000 

                   7,045,294                    7,567,322 

                   1,916,192                    1,916,192 

                   6,892,906                    1,346,250 

           1,762,116,199           1,345,817,803 

               812,227,932               812,227,932 

                 89,905,688                 82,342,759 

           3,334,858,129           2,789,608,819

Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables

Advances to suppliers - unsecured, considered good

Advances to employees - secured, considered good

    -against salaries and post employment benefits

    -against purchases and expenses

Deposit with Islamabad High Court  

Prepayments

Deposits against Ijarah

Receivable from Government of Pakistan

Sales Tax Receivable

Agricultural Subsidy Receivable 

Other receivables

Less: provision against doub�ul receivables             (215,000,000)             (219,897,199)

           3,119,858,129           2,569,711,620 
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 11.1.2.9 Income tax return of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2017 (tax year 2018) was filed on 28-
11-2018 based on management accounts (due to non-finaliza�on of its audited accounts of 2017) 
declaring a loss of Rs. 2.776 billion while claiming a refund of Rs. 56.767 million. The Company had 
received a no�ce from FBR under sec�on 120(3) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 dated 27 June 2019 
for submission of audited accounts, which were furnished on 14 November 2019. It is understood  that 
the changes in management accounts and audited accounts have no material impact on current tax 
liability, business losses or deprecia�on losses declared in the tax return.

 11.1.2.10 The Company was selected for sales tax audit under sec�on 72B/25 for tax period July 2010 to June 2011 
of the Act wherein the DCIR passed Order by comple�ng the audit proceedings and created demand to 
the tune of Rs. 4.60 million. The Company, being aggrieved, preferred appeal before CIR-A who reduced 
the demand to the tune of Rs. 4.19 million vide order No. 06 dated 06 September 2013. Being aggrieved, 
the Company filed an appeal before ATIR, Lahore which is pending for fixa�on.

 11.1.2.11 The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue ("DCIR") passed an order u/s 11(2) of the Sales Tax Act, 1990 
for tax period June 2013 to October 2014 dated 26 January 2015 whereby crea�ng demand of Rs. 165.70 
million. The Company being aggrieved preferred an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue-Appeals 
(CIR (A)) dated 31 July 2015 against the said order. The Learned CIR (A) passed an order dated 06 October 
2015, annulling the said Order. Resultantly, the department preferred an appeal before the Appellate 
Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) against the order of CIR (A) which is pending for fixa�on.

 11.1.2.12 The DCIR passed an assessment order under Sales Tax Act, 1990 (the Act) pertaining to the period July 
2009 to June 2010 dated 27 June 2012 crea�ng demand of Rs. 4.96 million. The Company, being 
aggrieved, filed an appeal before CIR-A who passed the Order on 16 November 2012, reduced the said 
demand to Rs.4.51 million. Being aggrieved, the department filed an appeal before ATIR, Lahore which 
has been disposed off during the period and order passed of the learned CIR (Appeals) has been upheld. 
The department has not filed any appeal against this order of ATIR.

  Based on opinion of tax advisors handling income tax and sales tax li�ga�ons, the management believes 
that the Company has strong legal grounds against each case and that no financial liability is expected to 
accrue. Accordingly, no provision has been made in these financial statements.        

 11.1.3 Other Con�ngencies

  There is no material change in status of such con�ngencies from the preceding published financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020.

 11.2 Commitments  

 11.2.1 Commitments under irrevocable le�ers of credit for:

30 June 31 December

2021 2020

Un-audited Audited

Rupees Rupees

                   3,304,782                 10,594,605 - purchase of plant and machinery

- purchase of raw material                                    -                   46,545,000 

                   3,304,782                 57,139,605 
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17 Transac�ons and balances with related par�es

 Related par�es include associated undertakings, key management personnel (comprising the Chief Execu�ve 
Officer and Directors), post employment benefit plans and other related par�es.

 Detail of transac�ons and balances with related par�es  are as follows:

(Un-audited) (Un-audited)

30 June 30 June

2021 2020

Rupees Rupees

17.1

17.1.1 Associated Undertakings

17.1.1.1 Shareholding and common directorship

Na�onal Bank of Pakistan

Markup expense 151,855,545 209,084,748

Preference dividend 1,886,680

                  

1,897,104

Bank Balances - net 3,574,220

                  

(3,122,124)

17.1.1.2

Mark up Expense 88,280,560

                

121,852,420

Preference dividend 16,929,279

                

17,022,811

Bank Balances - net 24,837,272

                
1,001,721

Mark-up expense 34,190,630
                

45,495,083

Markup paid 31,938,485

                
11,458,467

Short term borrowings - net 200,072,159

             

(236,099)

Summit Bank Limited

Mark-up expense 60,013,636

                

75,024,580

Markup paid 82,984,234

                

24,857,328

Short term borrowings - net 454,234,203

             

24,239,388

Bank Balances - net (241,837,274)

            

14,654,916

17.1.1.3

Contribu�on to employees provident fund 11,150,299 10,220,468

Contribu�on to employees gratuity fund 1,151,731 2,169,769

17.1.1.4

Short term employee benefits 10,800,000 10,368,738

Post employment benefits 642,600 603,330

Transac�ons with related par�es

Post employment benefit plans

Key management personnel

Common directorship

Faysal Bank Limited

Silk Bank Limited
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14

15

16

Sales - net

Sale of fer�lizers

Other products

Gross sales

Sales tax 

Trade discount

Cost of sales

Raw and packing material consumed

Salaries, wages and benefits

Fuel and power

Stores, spare part and loose tools consumed

Deprecia�on on property, plant and equipment

Others

Cost of goods manufactured

Opening work-in-process

Closing work-in-process

Opening finished goods

Closing finished goods

Taxa�on

Current

Deferred

(Un-audited) (Un-audited)

30 June 30 June

2021 2020

Rupees Rupees

2,524,288,862 1,026,361,958

104,718,464

             

105,193,179

2,629,007,326

          

1,131,555,137

(67,077,333)

              

(29,208,605)

(51,860,393)

              

(34,542,040)

2,510,069,600

          

1,067,804,492

2,690,509,577

          

271,355,183

267,725,514

             

245,374,554

622,245,132

             

157,991,471

104,656,277

             
55,586,652

798,138,929
             

815,133,185

105,223,179             113,918,215

4,588,498,608
          

1,659,359,260

89,279,443

                

95,566,686

(97,437,434)

              

(130,870,791)

(8,157,991)

               

(35,304,105)

271,552,598

             

637,222,060

(2,058,650,148)

        

(175,284,704)

(1,787,097,550) 461,937,356

2,793,243,067

          

2,085,992,511

37,651,026 16,141,343

(227,792,144) (175,991,068)

(190,141,118) (159,849,725)

 16.1 Provision for current tax has been made in accordance with the sec�on 113 'Minimum tax on income of 
certain persons' of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.
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17 Transac�ons and balances with related par�es

 Related par�es include associated undertakings, key management personnel (comprising the Chief Execu�ve 
Officer and Directors), post employment benefit plans and other related par�es.

 Detail of transac�ons and balances with related par�es  are as follows:

(Un-audited) (Un-audited)

30 June 30 June

2021 2020

Rupees Rupees

17.1

17.1.1 Associated Undertakings

17.1.1.1 Shareholding and common directorship

Na�onal Bank of Pakistan

Markup expense 151,855,545 209,084,748

Preference dividend 1,886,680

                  

1,897,104

Bank Balances - net 3,574,220

                  

(3,122,124)

17.1.1.2

Mark up Expense 88,280,560

                

121,852,420

Preference dividend 16,929,279

                

17,022,811

Bank Balances - net 24,837,272

                
1,001,721

Mark-up expense 34,190,630
                

45,495,083

Markup paid 31,938,485

                
11,458,467

Short term borrowings - net 200,072,159

             

(236,099)

Summit Bank Limited

Mark-up expense 60,013,636

                

75,024,580

Markup paid 82,984,234

                

24,857,328

Short term borrowings - net 454,234,203

             

24,239,388

Bank Balances - net (241,837,274)

            

14,654,916

17.1.1.3

Contribu�on to employees provident fund 11,150,299 10,220,468

Contribu�on to employees gratuity fund 1,151,731 2,169,769

17.1.1.4

Short term employee benefits 10,800,000 10,368,738

Post employment benefits 642,600 603,330

Transac�ons with related par�es

Post employment benefit plans

Key management personnel

Common directorship

Faysal Bank Limited

Silk Bank Limited
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14

15

16

Sales - net

Sale of fer�lizers

Other products

Gross sales

Sales tax 

Trade discount

Cost of sales

Raw and packing material consumed

Salaries, wages and benefits

Fuel and power

Stores, spare part and loose tools consumed

Deprecia�on on property, plant and equipment

Others

Cost of goods manufactured

Opening work-in-process

Closing work-in-process

Opening finished goods

Closing finished goods

Taxa�on

Current

Deferred

(Un-audited) (Un-audited)

30 June 30 June

2021 2020

Rupees Rupees

2,524,288,862 1,026,361,958

104,718,464

             

105,193,179

2,629,007,326

          

1,131,555,137

(67,077,333)

              

(29,208,605)

(51,860,393)

              

(34,542,040)

2,510,069,600

          

1,067,804,492

2,690,509,577

          

271,355,183

267,725,514

             

245,374,554

622,245,132

             

157,991,471

104,656,277

             
55,586,652

798,138,929
             

815,133,185

105,223,179             113,918,215

4,588,498,608
          

1,659,359,260

89,279,443

                

95,566,686

(97,437,434)

              

(130,870,791)

(8,157,991)

               

(35,304,105)

271,552,598

             

637,222,060

(2,058,650,148)

        

(175,284,704)

(1,787,097,550) 461,937,356

2,793,243,067

          

2,085,992,511

37,651,026 16,141,343

(227,792,144) (175,991,068)

(190,141,118) (159,849,725)

 16.1 Provision for current tax has been made in accordance with the sec�on 113 'Minimum tax on income of 
certain persons' of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.
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18 Cash flow from opera�ng ac�vi�es

Loss before tax

Adjustment for non-cash items:

Interest / markup expense

Deprecia�on on property, plant and equipment

Provision for  staff re�rement benefit

Mark-up / Interest Income

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment

Opera�ng profit/(loss) before changes in working capital

Changes in working capital

(Increase) / decrease in current assets:

Stores, spares and loose tools

Stock in trade

Trade receivables

Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables

Increase / (decrease) in current liabili�es:

Trade and other payables

             

Cash (used in)/generated from opera�ons

30 June 30 June

2021 2020

Rupees Rupees

(1,890,144,245) (2,859,523,330)

1,283,694,291

          

1,673,081,960

801,667,406

             

818,851,961

1,151,731

                  

(2,169,769)

(7,903,007)

                

(12,698,829)

(1,130,592)

                

-

187,335,584

             

(382,458,007)

(1,612,152)

                

(3,983,194)

(1,870,477,991)

       
407,124,183

488,612
                      

(1,066,594)

(550,146,509)            678,599,372

(2,421,748,040)
        

1,080,673,767

954,244,878 (164,302,978)

(1,280,167,578) 533,912,782

(Audited)(Un-audited)
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(Un-audited) (Audited)

30 June 31 December

2021 2020

Rupees Rupees

17.2

17.2.1 Associated Undertakings

17.2.1.1 Shareholding and common directorship

Na�onal Bank of Pakistan

Long term finances 2,467,083,735

          

2,467,083,735

Redeemable capital 462,057,100

             

462,057,100

Bills payable 187,030,000

             

187,030,000

Conver�ble, redeemable Preference shares 34,587,560

                

34,587,560

Mark-up payable 3,627,313,093

          

3,475,457,548

Preference dividend payable 188,073,446

             

186,186,766

Bank account Balances 6,007,313

                  

2,433,094

Advisory fee 738,600,000

             

738,600,000

Advance for transac�on Cost 23,200,000

                

23,200,000

17.2.1.2

Faysal Bank Limited

Redeemable capital 1,499,109,500

          
1,499,109,500

Long term Finance 349,500,000
             

349,500,000

Conver�ble, redeemable Preference shares 310,355,940             310,355,940

Mark up payable 2,028,313,152
          

1,940,032,592

Preference dividend payable 320,066,255

             

303,136,975

Bank account Balances 28,650,078

                

3,812,806

Trustee fee 5,668,582

                  

5,668,582

Silk Bank Limited

Long term finances 130,607,546

             

130,607,546

Short term borrowings 752,068,588

             

551,996,429

Mark up payable 284,376,571

             

282,124,426

Summit Bank Limited

Redeemable capital 603,406,000

             

603,406,000

Short term borrowings 1,121,409,683

          

667,175,480

Mark up payable 521,143,262 544,113,860

Bank account Balances 37,012,775 278,850,049

Others

Housing colony receivable 14,848,421 4,948,070

17.2.3

Payable to Gratuity Trust 3,231,831 6,930,313

Common directorship

Balances with related par�es

Post employment benefit plans
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18 Cash flow from opera�ng ac�vi�es

Loss before tax

Adjustment for non-cash items:

Interest / markup expense

Deprecia�on on property, plant and equipment

Provision for  staff re�rement benefit

Mark-up / Interest Income

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment

Opera�ng profit/(loss) before changes in working capital

Changes in working capital

(Increase) / decrease in current assets:

Stores, spares and loose tools

Stock in trade

Trade receivables

Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables

Increase / (decrease) in current liabili�es:

Trade and other payables

             

Cash (used in)/generated from opera�ons

30 June 30 June

2021 2020

Rupees Rupees

(1,890,144,245) (2,859,523,330)

1,283,694,291

          

1,673,081,960

801,667,406

             

818,851,961

1,151,731

                  

(2,169,769)

(7,903,007)

                

(12,698,829)

(1,130,592)

                

-

187,335,584

             

(382,458,007)

(1,612,152)

                

(3,983,194)

(1,870,477,991)

       
407,124,183

488,612
                      

(1,066,594)

(550,146,509)            678,599,372

(2,421,748,040)
        

1,080,673,767

954,244,878 (164,302,978)

(1,280,167,578) 533,912,782

(Audited)(Un-audited)
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(Un-audited) (Audited)

30 June 31 December

2021 2020

Rupees Rupees

17.2

17.2.1 Associated Undertakings

17.2.1.1 Shareholding and common directorship

Na�onal Bank of Pakistan

Long term finances 2,467,083,735

          

2,467,083,735

Redeemable capital 462,057,100

             

462,057,100

Bills payable 187,030,000

             

187,030,000

Conver�ble, redeemable Preference shares 34,587,560

                

34,587,560

Mark-up payable 3,627,313,093

          

3,475,457,548

Preference dividend payable 188,073,446

             

186,186,766

Bank account Balances 6,007,313

                  

2,433,094

Advisory fee 738,600,000

             

738,600,000

Advance for transac�on Cost 23,200,000

                

23,200,000

17.2.1.2

Faysal Bank Limited

Redeemable capital 1,499,109,500

          
1,499,109,500

Long term Finance 349,500,000
             

349,500,000

Conver�ble, redeemable Preference shares 310,355,940             310,355,940

Mark up payable 2,028,313,152
          

1,940,032,592

Preference dividend payable 320,066,255

             

303,136,975

Bank account Balances 28,650,078

                

3,812,806

Trustee fee 5,668,582

                  

5,668,582

Silk Bank Limited

Long term finances 130,607,546

             

130,607,546

Short term borrowings 752,068,588

             

551,996,429

Mark up payable 284,376,571

             

282,124,426

Summit Bank Limited

Redeemable capital 603,406,000

             

603,406,000

Short term borrowings 1,121,409,683

          

667,175,480

Mark up payable 521,143,262 544,113,860

Bank account Balances 37,012,775 278,850,049

Others

Housing colony receivable 14,848,421 4,948,070

17.2.3

Payable to Gratuity Trust 3,231,831 6,930,313

Common directorship

Balances with related par�es

Post employment benefit plans
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19.3 Reconcilia�on of reportable segment profitable segment profit and loss

For the half year ended 30 June 2021

Total loss for reportable segments before taxa�on for the period

Taxa�on for the period

Loss a�er taxa�on for the period

20 Cash and cash equivalents

Short term borrowings - running finance - secured

Cash and bank balances

(Un-audited) (Un-audited)

30 June 30 June

2021 2020

Rupees Rupees

(1,890,144,245)

        

(2,859,523,330)

190,141,118

             

159,849,725

(1,700,003,127)

        

(2,699,673,605)

(2,722,329,320)
        

(2,695,446,876)

213,017,751             981,481,531

(2,509,311,569) (1,713,965,345)

Nature of Liability 

Redeemable capital

Long term finances

Short term borrowings

Principal Interest / mark up

12,165,534,546 12,481,899,605

7,108,711,231 8,286,623,379

1,709,291,163 1,811,980,731

20,983,536,940 22,580,503,715

Total

24,647,434,151

15,395,334,610

3,521,271,894

43,564,040,655

21 Overdue financial liabili�es

 The Company con�nues to face a liquidity shor�all due to which it was unable to meet its obliga�ons in respect of 
various debt finances. The details of overdue financial liabili�es as at 30  June 2021 are as follows:

22 Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabili�es

 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transac�on 
between market par�cipants at the measurement date.

 The following table show categories as well as carrying amounts and fair values of the financial assets and financial 
liabili�es according to their respec�ve category, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy for financial 
instruments measured at fair value. It does not include fair value informa�on for financial assets not measured at 
fair value if the carrying amount is reasonable approxima�on of fair value.
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19.3 Reconcilia�on of reportable segment profitable segment profit and loss

For the half year ended 30 June 2021

Total loss for reportable segments before taxa�on for the period

Taxa�on for the period

Loss a�er taxa�on for the period

20 Cash and cash equivalents

Short term borrowings - running finance - secured

Cash and bank balances

(Un-audited) (Un-audited)

30 June 30 June

2021 2020

Rupees Rupees

(1,890,144,245)

        

(2,859,523,330)

190,141,118

             

159,849,725

(1,700,003,127)

        

(2,699,673,605)

(2,722,329,320)
        

(2,695,446,876)

213,017,751             981,481,531

(2,509,311,569) (1,713,965,345)

Nature of Liability 

Redeemable capital

Long term finances

Short term borrowings

Principal Interest / mark up

12,165,534,546 12,481,899,605

7,108,711,231 8,286,623,379

1,709,291,163 1,811,980,731

20,983,536,940 22,580,503,715

Total

24,647,434,151

15,395,334,610

3,521,271,894

43,564,040,655

21 Overdue financial liabili�es

 The Company con�nues to face a liquidity shor�all due to which it was unable to meet its obliga�ons in respect of 
various debt finances. The details of overdue financial liabili�es as at 30  June 2021 are as follows:

22 Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabili�es

 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transac�on 
between market par�cipants at the measurement date.

 The following table show categories as well as carrying amounts and fair values of the financial assets and financial 
liabili�es according to their respec�ve category, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy for financial 
instruments measured at fair value. It does not include fair value informa�on for financial assets not measured at 
fair value if the carrying amount is reasonable approxima�on of fair value.
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Financial liabili�es at amor�sed cost

Redeemable capital

Long term finances

Conver�ble, redeemable preference shares

Long term payable

Short term borrowings

Trade and other creditors

Accrued liabili�es

Security deposits and reten�on money

Other payables

Mark-up accrued on borrowings

Preference dividend payable

30 June 31 December

2021 2020

Rupees Rupees

12,165,534,546

     

12,165,534,546

7,108,766,064

        
7,113,137,166

1,593,342,690
        

1,593,342,690

1,471,229,563        1,740,315,519

4,548,834,629        3,646,985,016

2,508,410,200

        
1,881,736,485

143,026,442

           

113,095,904

19,018,660

              

18,597,680

51,647,711

              

43,870,113

22,669,734,945 21,731,686,709

1,643,016,258 1,556,102,687

53,922,561,709 51,604,404,515

23 Financial Risk Management

 The Company's financial risk management objec�ve and policies are consistent with the disclosed in the financial 
statement for the financial year ended on 31 December 2020.

24 Date of authoriza�on

 This interim financial informa�on was authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on  --------------.

25 Seasonality

 The Company’s fer�lizer business is subject to seasonal fluctua�ons as a result of two different farming seasons viz, 
Rabi (from October to March) and Kharif (from April to September). On an average, fer�lizer sales are more �lted 
towards Rabi season. The Company manages seasonality in the business through appropriate inventory 
management.

26 General

 26.1 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.

 26.2 Corresponding figures have been re-arranged / reclassified in these interim financial informa�on for the 
purpose of comparison.

(Audited)(Un-audited)
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Financial liabili�es at amor�sed cost

Redeemable capital

Long term finances

Conver�ble, redeemable preference shares

Long term payable

Short term borrowings

Trade and other creditors

Accrued liabili�es

Security deposits and reten�on money

Other payables

Mark-up accrued on borrowings

Preference dividend payable

30 June 31 December

2021 2020

Rupees Rupees

12,165,534,546

     

12,165,534,546

7,108,766,064

        
7,113,137,166

1,593,342,690
        

1,593,342,690

1,471,229,563        1,740,315,519

4,548,834,629        3,646,985,016

2,508,410,200

        
1,881,736,485

143,026,442

           

113,095,904

19,018,660

              

18,597,680

51,647,711

              

43,870,113

22,669,734,945 21,731,686,709

1,643,016,258 1,556,102,687

53,922,561,709 51,604,404,515

23 Financial Risk Management

 The Company's financial risk management objec�ve and policies are consistent with the disclosed in the financial 
statement for the financial year ended on 31 December 2020.

24 Date of authoriza�on

 This interim financial informa�on was authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on  --------------.

25 Seasonality

 The Company’s fer�lizer business is subject to seasonal fluctua�ons as a result of two different farming seasons viz, 
Rabi (from October to March) and Kharif (from April to September). On an average, fer�lizer sales are more �lted 
towards Rabi season. The Company manages seasonality in the business through appropriate inventory 
management.

26 General

 26.1 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.

 26.2 Corresponding figures have been re-arranged / reclassified in these interim financial informa�on for the 
purpose of comparison.

(Audited)(Un-audited)
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Chief Execu�ve Chief Financial Officer

               

                     
Director

          

                

                



AGRITECH LIMITED
nd Head Office: 2 Floor Asia Centre, 8-Babar Block New Garden Town, Lahore.

Ph: 042 - 35860341-44, Fax: 042 - 35860339-40

                                 


